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Green Build Technoiogy Limited was smhn'mud in 2004 and was farmerly known as Youyue international
Limited. It fs a company listed on e Singapars En:’henge&ecu'rﬁaa Trading Limitad rsmr‘ca:de ¥osi] and
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Cnrporate Brief ' whtlly-owned subsidiary of Green Bulld Technology Limiled and i regislered in China, Hartun in 2012, Harin
'} > | i | : ! y Shengming is principally engaged in green buldings projects, green fightings projects, and research and da-

5 A 3 = vefopments as well ss marketing af new fechnigyes in clean and renewable ansrgy with focus on green bulld-

fngs. Hartiin Shengrhing has worked will the National Science and Technalogy Support Progra Task Foroe,

wall-known scienlific research institutes and agencms and key universitins in Ghira, Harbin Shengming has

TR RN A TR T T 2000 . @ANTIGHIFARAT, BoSESNE 4 actively partcipated in shergy-saving fachnalogy researches and anergy-saving upgrading projects in China
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Stakeholders:

The year 20114 has been a year of rapid expansion and steady growth for Green Buid Technology
Limited. The financial results of the Corporafion is evident, and should Sontinue to prove in the fulure,
that our decision fo expand our business from a lraditional packaging matenals manufacturer to m-
clude those invalving green energy, pollution reduction and eco-fmendly infrasiructure has been a
correct path.

Climatic and enviranmental changes are key challenges faced by humans. (ssues such as global
shortages in non-renewable energy, environmental pollution and global warming have also become
increasiigly mora apparent. As such, govemments all over the world have put great emphasis on ra-
ducing energy conswmption and carbon emissions and to refocus on susfainable economic devalap-
menf via green and enviroamental fnendly sirategles. The Chinese govemment has employed an
‘iron fist™ approach fo tackle paliufion issues.

People have been suffering from the negative effects of haze caused by pollution, The Corporation's
new business (s therefore committed to improve people's lives and the environment and fo promote
sustainable econormic growth. improving the environment and {ackling the haze (ssues is therefore
aur new migsion. We are delermined and confident that we can build belfer infrastructures that are
more energy efficient and emaronmentally friendly. This is not only China's ideals but also a larget to
work fowards globally.

“There will be a time when the siorm dies down and the sun comes out, and | will be an the way fo
success”, these are the heroic fines of LI Bai, a great poet in the Tang Dynasty of China, in his
well-known poem "Hard Road’, and is exactly what we sxpectof our career. Although the path ahead
may not be easy, but we are prepared to shoulder the social responsibility bestowsd upan us and
work hard {o acheve our mission

We shall Respect. Canform, Revere and Protect fhe environment and leave our next generalions with

biue skies and ciear walters! At the same time, we shail all do our part for a befter and healthier future

for our chitdren and grandchildren! And in this green journey, Green Build Technology Limited shall
aiways be with you!

Zhaa Lizhl

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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2014 Work Report by CEO

During the past year in 2014, Green Bulld Technology Limited has forged ahead, making quantum
leap developments and has reached a new stage of growth, In 2014, the Group firmly seized a senes,
aof imponan! sirategic apportunities to strengthen co-operatigns in China and abroad. The Group has
diso made posiive advancemeants in our new projects and has become a leading enterprise in the

green and energy-saving industry,

In 2014, the Group has achiaved gratifying results in the enargy conservation and sustainable deveil-
apmevil projects business As the anly private enterprise that parficipated in the preparation of the
National Standard for Evaluation of Existing Builgings, the Group has completed the first upgrading
pilot project in China using green lechnology: the Hebai Estate Pilot Project. The Group comprefhen-
sively planned, designed and upgraded the Hebai Esfate Pilof Project with green fechnology. In
2014, the Group focused on business sirategies that effectively improved ocperafions qualty, and
thus realised an increase of 18% in evenue to RMB 289 T millon and an increase of 381% in profit
after fax to abawt RMB 28 4 milffan,

Facing new emaronmeéntal opportunities, the Group will constantly expand its business scope. The
Group has set strong foolings in the sustainable development industry and coopevaled closaly with
=scigntific resesrch institutions and universities fo constantiy, conduct innovative research and deyel-
opment in. energy-saving technology, This year in 2015, the Group wf:'.' enhance technical esearch &
devalopment and cooperate with well-known unfversiies to camy out research on Aatural resourc-
es-based indoor environmental regulating technology and exfenor wall thermal cladding 30 prinfing
technology./ Such technologies are subversive technical revolufions that will play a positive role in
promoling the developmant of the green and enviconmental protechon industry,

Facing neary 50 bilffon m* of potential old buildings that requires upgrading in China, the Group shall
continue to slevate itself fo the next level by first setting foot in Herongjiang province, and thén across
China, and finally the world. The Group is aiso doing its bit'to build & harmonious sociely and fo con-
fribute to the development of the Jow-carbon envirapymental protection industry. Promating the devel-
opment af energy-saving and envirenmental protection industry shall bang huge econormic, Social

Loopking back, we are very proud of the inspinng achievements we have obfained. But we sholuld nof

and emaronmental benefits to the Group

be corfanted with past achievemenis. We must face new apportunities and challeriges. We are firmiy
convinced thet the Group, (ed by Chairman, Mr Zhao Lizhi, can withstand severe fests and shal be
able {0 achievs continued success. We Belisve that with the efforts of aif iy é:nh'eagues and staff

mambars, we can defintely seize opparfunitias fo mes! challenges and stive for developmemtswiths i

great enthugiasm and high morale, stnive for success and create a better future for the Group.
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Wu Xueying
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Mr Zhaao Lizhi is ouf pon-Executive Chamman and Director and was appoinfed on 18 July 2014 Mr, Zhao isa sefior
enerngy management professional and bilding energy-saving exper, amd he & aiso 8 weli-known amtreprensar v
the energy-saving industry with more than 20 years of comperale management and project management expenence

He has scores of jovenlion patents under his name, which are-relaled to energy-saving and insuion doors,
wirrdows and maferials Mr Zhao i5 also an adjunct leciurer with several universilies in Harbin city
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Ms Wu Xuaying és our Chiell Executive Officer was appomied a5 an Executive Direclor of our Company on 17
March 2014 and re-elected on 28 Apnl 2014 pursuant fo the Group resfruciuning fo diversify (o new business
lnes of the provisian of energy conservaion sendees and sustanabie develomment projects. Ma WU s 8 cenified
senlor enengy manager, & member of Helongiang Technology Economy Expert Advisory Gommilles; @ member
of the National Management Talent Viecalional Qualification Review Commillee and s one of len major
phifanthropists in Hellongitang Province. She iz also an adjiunct lecturar with the MBA Education Ceantra of Harbin
Commerce Liniversity. She specialises in management-consuiling and carpovale sirategic planning. Singe the
begitring of her canser, she has accumulated exlensive experience In business managemen! through
participating in corparate sirategic planning and corporale cullire consulling work. In Seplember 2005. Ms Wu
pubiished her first book enfitfed { /L5 S o A SRR | which discusses and sUmmEnsas her views on
corparaie slaff fraining, The book was awarded the aufsfanding research third-class award by the Hellongjiang
Provincial Acadeny of Social Sciences and was incorporaled fo the “Giina Management Yearbook” in 2008. She
became invoived in ibemrmr consanation managemant inawstry in 2070, w:hrch ig a refatively y\oung.lhd‘u’sﬁm
the PRC. She took up & managemen! position in Hetlongjiang Weicheng Buwlding Energy Conservafion
Technology Development Co, Lid, which anabled her lo parigipate in an energy conssrvalion projeef in
coliaboration with the Harbin govemmernd, pursuant to which she garmdpmcnnul‘ ExXpErence M managing
Aumsrous aspects of projects of auch nafe, ‘Ms wu spoke passionalely about graen fmcs such 25 buiding
energy conservation and aeviating the haze situations in Chima i varous medias and seminars and her uniqe
painis of views won praises and accolades from baoth indusiny experts. and polifical’ leaders alike. Ms W
gradusted fram the Harbin Uiniversity af Commerce in 2004, J
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Mr LI Bwrasou! Executive Direclor-and Chiel Execylive Officer snd was appointed on 30 Seplember 2004 Mr Li was
re-glected an 29 Aosd 2013 Mr Ll /s responsible for the overal management, sirategic plannng and business devel-
oprent of our Grow. Umr: s graduation i 1987, My Li served as a lachuyer in Zhepang Limveratly, The inatifude of
Petrochemical Technalogy and was further involved in adminisfrative manegement duning his fenure at Zhefiang
Uinwveraiy, In 1853, Mr Li joired Zhejiang Hua Long Shi Ye Development Maln Company (Shenzhen branctl) of Zhe-
frang industnal and Commercial Bank and heid the equivaent rank of general manager. Mr Lt subsequentty joined’
Zhejfiang Cement Holdings Company from 18596 fo 2000 and held the appaintment of manager of s business de-
partment. Between 1088 and 2000, Mr L was also involved in the runming of & trademark parnership fim i Zhejang
Province and is presently a carfified national lrademark agent. Mr Ll'pia'»‘?n' Hangzhou City High Technology Venturs
Capital Cnmpany in 200i before he joned You Kang Food Holdings Co., Lid., a relaled company of our Group i
2004, Irl-‘?h'h in Hangzhou City High Technoiogy Ve#ifure Capial Company, Mr Li was imvalved in the general marn-
agement of the company, Mr Li gradualed wilh a bachelor degree in chemical engineenng from the Coflege of
Chemical Engineanng, Zhejiang Univarsity in T987. Mr Li further compleded a ressarch course in Zhefiang University

-tn 1983 and a distance educafional research cowse m business managemant under Tanghus Unversify i 2004
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Dr ¥a0 Fengge was appointed 85 an independent Djrector of our Company o 10 Jufie 2014. ke is & member of the
Audt Commities, Nominating Cammiltes and Remuneration Commifies, He graduated in 1997 fram ihe Hetiongy-
ang College of Computer Sclence, obtained an MBA fn Econamics in 1999 and subsequently abtained & Ph 0 in
Management m 2003 Or Yeo iz m.rren'fly working as the Dean af the Harbin Universily of Commerce, Instiuie of
Ecanomic Research: Ha is well.versed in the theory of capital markel.and operations, sirategic managament and
markefing He is also an independent director ef a listed company i China
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My Lu King Seng was apponfed 25 an indepandent Director of our Company an 10 June 2094, He s the Chairmar
of the Remuneralion Commillee and aiso a member of he Auit Committee and Nominating Commiteg. Mr Luis
e founder and managing director of Crion Advisony Ple Lid, a conswllancy and adwisory firm. Priar fo this, e was
the Chief Financial Oificer of & Singapore mmparly He possesses more than 20 years' guperance in AcCounling,
suditing and finagcial advisary and has spent more than 8, years working for Big 4 ac\::nunhr{g firms. He graduated
from Londor with a Bacheior of Accountancy and is currently a Chartered Accounfant of Singapore. He is also con-
currently the independent director of other listed companies in Singapors
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Mr Kuarn Cheng Tuck was appointed as an Independent Dirsctar of our Company on 10 June 2014, He is the Chair-
man of ite Audit Committes-and Nomnaling Comyrttes and also a member of the Remunerafion Commifes. My
Kuan has mae than 20 years of experience i the fields of accounting -audiing as well s business and financial ad-
wisary, MHe currenhly manages hs own accounling and financid consuling prachices, He i also an independent difec-
{or af several SGX and HKEx flsted compavies: He holds o Bacheldd of Accagnitancy degres from the Manydng
Technological Linfversily of Singapore ad is a feflow member of the Association of Chartered Cerfified Accouniaints
(ACCA), United Kingtam as weil as a member of the Institute of Singapors Charfered Accountanis (1SCA). In add-
tion ta tis gccoumiting qualifications, he also hoids 8 Master of Laws (Corporete and Financial Services Law) degrea
from the National Uinersity of Singapare, & Bachseior of Laws gegres from fhe University of London and is am asso-
ciata member of the Singapore Associafion of Instifvde of Chanterad Secretanes snd Administrators
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My diang Xikun s the general manager of our Green Techaoldgy Division, He has more May 30 years' experfsnce in
project supervision refating o real estate development and property managemant. From 1825 o 2004, he hald
management posifions in real estate development companies thal slowed him fo participate in numerous upgrading
ana consiruct ov profacts ﬁm.'r'ss the Upgrading of ditapidared houses inan area of 150,000 square meters rn.ﬂaun
district, Harbin oy arnd an area of 125,000 square mu!_:rs i Daowan disingl, Havbin city, @5 well as he developmenl
of an area of 160000 sguare meters in Daoli dhstrict, Harbin oity. He fobk an managemeant positions in the Harbin
i B0 (LA 25 Jamd Harbin Xiamgfamg BMS (W08 T U T
fram 2005 o 2013 dunng which he managed the healing provided to 55 000 Harbin residents over an area of 4.5
million square melers

Daowal Mew Disirict Heating Company (i
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Mr Yang Xisoyu fs ihe depufy genersl manager of owr Green Techrology Division in charge of fhe projects
depariment. He has more than 20 years of experence m projec management relating o upgeading and
development of properties. hawing been invalved i profects such as the development of he spontscentre of Harkin
Normail Linfversity, the construction of the Sangbed Disinct Qiuiin Chenxia howsing esfate, the construchon of fhe
Chiina Peopie's Bank (Harbin Central Branch ) Yinxing housing estate and the Harbin Bincai fown projecd. In recent
years, Mr Yang Xiaoyu s been invalved in the management and supenvision of engrgy consanalion projects

m
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Mr Sun Honglei is the deputy general manager of otr Green Technology Division in charge/of the fechnical
deparimend. He specialises in wharn landscape design and architeciure and has had vasi expenience pariicipating
In fmpadant upgrading and comstruction projects such as the construchion of e Harbin Mangang district
govarmment's office, the upgrading of the housing esfale of China Telecom’s employees as wall as ihe rencvation
of-ffe office blilding of the Anda District Local Bureay of Findnce. In 2007 [o 2012, he was the vice président of
Heilongiang Zhongrel Buiding Design Research instifule Linsled Co. (7181 7 @8 i o R R d fe e al)
and was lhe chief designer i AUMerows major projects carmed out by the Harbin govermmen! artd alsa parficipated
as design conséilant for numéenous elher projects in Ching. Witle working on these projecis, e fesearched on
Erfergy saving sciulions relating fo the upgrading of existing buildings and accumuiated valvable knowiedge on the
same and therefore has sirong theoretical foundabon and practical expenence in such flelds as building
decoration, enengy-savng renovation and upgrading design, Mr Surrhas aiso padicipated in the preparation of the
MWational Standard for Green Evaluation of Enargy-Saving Upgrading of Existing Buildings a5 privafe enterprise
represenlalive and the pleparation of the Guidance on Iriplementation of he Standard for Greun Evaluation of
Energy-Saving legmﬂmg of Existirig Buiidings. !
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M5 Wang Hong @5 the depuly gensral manager of our Green Tecfinolagy Deesion i charge of the admimstration,
public refatfons and business develgiment deparment. Prod ho jofming our Group in 2014, she se/ved A8 & reporer
with Harbin Telmision Station for more than 5 years, during wivch she condicied independent inteniews and
edifing fo produce maore than 1,000 news ciips, parficipaled i large-scale fve shows and infenviewed a namber of
provincial and mumicipal leaders. Ms Wang has got stong wating skilis and good communication skiffe: She

possesses vast media experdepce and was granted the honourable fiffe of "Top Ten Livethood Reporfers® _

reviausly, With pm:::fca!erpeweﬂces i garmstrative managemenr and ayvent planning, s was tasked to be the
adifar for several TV and five recording programs. Af the sams fime, she is also familiar with the vanous new meada,
and higs unigue insights and experences in microbiogging and Wechat foputacization, and played a very posifive
reske iy the allroumd digital putsieity of enferprises, meétia promeion and maess cammunication. s Wang gradualed
with a bachelor degres in design fron the Southwest Linfversity for Nationalities in China. =
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‘M'Jarrg Veon Hoo is our Chief Financial Dificer, Mr Jang is responsible for overseeing our Group’s sccouniing and
finance mattars. MrJong began his career in July 1996 in Arhur Andersen wiers e wis involved it assurmnce and
business adwsory, and fransaction adwisory senvices. During Ris fenura i Arthur Andersan, Mr Jong was
responsible for amongst others, performing operahonal and financial audits of public listed companes and
muthnationa! corporations in differsnt mdm!»as. and developing and implementing plans fo enhance afficiency and

_effectiveness of business and financisl processes. He also assisied companes i their intial public offenngs and

s diigence rEVIews in connection with proposed mrergers amd acquisifions. Mr Jong left his position as & manager
of Arthiur Andersan in Ortaber 2002 1o foln Delaitte & Touchs before joining sur Company in Seplember 2004, Mr
Jong gradealed from Nanyang Technological Linfversity with a bachelor degree fn Accounlancy with honadrs, Mr
Jofig 15 currenlly @ merberol the Tnstitute of Singapere Chartered Accounfanls and serves a5 an Jndepénn‘enr

Director on the board of Sherg Stong Group Lid, & company fisfed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
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Mr ¥a Jlanming 18 our General Manager for Packaging Division: My Ye s fesponsible for the managemsnt,
siralegic planming, business developmen!, prodiciion and sales and marketing acthvities of our Packaging
Division &t Yue Hal Colour Printing and Packaging Go. Lid, (“Yue Hai') soquired in December 2007 Mr Ye
co-founded Yus Heiin 1892 Before thal, he was willh amother packaging company- from 1980 fo 1892 workng
s way up to fackyy manager before leawving I esfablish Yue Hai. Prios to tat. Mr Ye afso sened a few pears in
the Air Force of the Pegple's Repubile of Ching
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Mr Zhai Liangiig is our Deputy General Manager of Produchion and Qualily Control for the Packaging Dhision

Mr Zhai has been with owr Growp since 1883, Pror o this, Mr Zhal was with & chemical fitve company fn charge

of warshousing from {985 fo 1993, Mr Zhal oblained his masfer degres in business administration in 2008 fram

fhe Zhejlang Universiy [
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Ms Ye L1 is our Assistant Gamsral Manager in charge of Adminisiration and Human Resources for the Packaging
Divisidn. Ms Yo has bean with our Group since 2003, Ms Ye has a diploma in Business Finance fiom the Zhefiang
Liviversily
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Mr Cao Wejie.is our Financlal Gonlrodler for the Packaging Diision, Mr Gao assists in the management of our
Group s finance matters, inciuding financia! plannimg, budgel planning and funds management, MrCad is furthsr
ible for the imfemal confrols of the Group's Packaging Division. Mr Cao has been with our Group since
1983, Mr Gao bhas a degree in Business anfmﬁmﬂnn frarm the Zhejtang Unfversity and possesses the refevant
‘accounting cerfifications. i
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
1.Statement of Comprehensive Incoma

Group
FY2014 FY2013 Increase/
RME'O0D ' RMB000 {Dsereml

Revenue ' 289651 245418 15 0%
Gosi of sales (244, 646) (207,591) 17.9%
‘Gross profit 45,005 37,827 19.0%
Other operating income 33,948 6,380 432.1%
Selling and distribution expenses (7.178) (6,574) 9.2%
Adminisltrative expenses (22,087T) (21,360) 34%
Other operaling expenses (7,843) (3,088) 154.1%
Profit from operations 41,845 13,187 217.3%
Interest expense on sntaresl—beanng 1 :
loans (5.240) (4:401) 19.1%
Bank charges {T0). (211) (66.8%)
Profit before tax ) 36,535 8,575 326.1%
Income tax (8.136) (2,668) 204.9%
Net profit for the year 28,399 5,907 380.8%
Aftributable to:
Equity hoiders of the Company 23,382 770 2,936.6%
Non-controlling interests 5,017 5137 (2.3%)

28,399 5,907 380.8%

Further to the Group's restructuring exercise intended to provide alternative revenue streams 1o the
Group and improve the financial position of the Group, the Group acquired 100% of WYW Capital Pte
Lid, which in turm ownad 100% of Harbin Shengming Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd. (the "New
Subsidiares”) in June 2014, The New Subsidiaries are principally engaged in project-based activities
involving Enuel:'gy conservation services and sustainable developments (Green Taﬂ'lnnlﬁgy Segment).
These adtivities aim 1o upgrade andfor replace existing Infrastructure with envirenmentally friendly
tachnology and architectura. As such, the statemant of comprehensive income presanted included the
contributions from the Mew Subsidianes from the date of acquisition till 31 Dacember 2014.and the
statement of financial position as at 31 Decamber 2014 |5 also Inclusive of the New Subsidiaries, in
addition to the Group's packaging business.

Pursuant to the Group's acquisition of the New Subsidiaries and ils expansion of business to include
those of project-based activiies to upgrade andior replace axisting infrastructure with green
lechnology and architecturs to complement its existng packaging segment, the new business
segment of grean technology projects contribuled pesitively to both the Group's revenue and
profitability for FY2014. As such, the Group's revenue was higher at RMB 289.7 million in FY2014
comparad to RMB 245.4 million in FY2013 and net profits after tax attributable to equity holdars of the
Company was RMB 23.4 million in FY2014 compared fo RME 0.B millian in FY2013,

Revenue and Gross Profit

Sales for the packaging segment increased shghtly by RMB 13.7 milllon or 5.6% from RMB 245.4
million In FY2013 to RMB 2591 millien in FY2014. Tha higher sales wera:mainly due (o higher sales
in semi-finishad products to customens as customers bacame morg price-sansitive and needed o
reduce spending in view of the competitive consumer products markets. Revenue from the new green
technology segment was RMB 30,5 million jn FY2014 mainly due to the Group echieving an
approximately 33% completion on its pilot project in China Harbin city to upgrade an existing estate
with a built-up area uf;appmximataly 180,000 sqm and 1,850 households with environmentally lﬁéﬂdw
technology and architecture: including tharmal facade cladding, undevrgmund carparking, solar and
natural gas heating elements. -

The gross margin for the packaging segment has decreased from 15.4% in FY2013 to 14.7% in
FY2014 due to the sales mix of having more sales ariging from semifinished products which
commanded lower gross margins. The green technology segment contributed a gross profit of RMB
6.9 million in FY.2014,

Other Profit & Loss liems

Other dperating income and expenses relate mainly to government grants and revenue and its
comesponding costs of sales of raw maleriais/scrap. The increase in other operating Income was
mainly due o higher govemment grants and subsidies received In FY2014 of RMB 26 5 million In
FY2014 compared to RMB 0.7 million in FY2013_The higher government grants and subsidias wera
mainly given tothe Group's new.green technology segment at a rate of RMB 155/sqm of built-up area,

Selling and distribution expenses increased in ling with tha ih::raasa in sales in FY2014.

Administrative expenses. atfiibutable to the New ‘Subsidiaries Tn FYZ014 was RMB 2.0 million
Disregarding this, administrative expenses wers slightly lower al RMB 20.1 miliion In FY2014
compared to RMB 21.4 milion In FY2013 malnly due to cost control measures ai the packaging
segmeni and lawer foreign exchange losses recarded in FY2014 compared (o !-'Yzﬂ‘l?!. affsat by
higher professional fees incurred in FY2014 of RMB 2.5 million compared to RMB 1.1 milllon in
FY¥Z013 as a result of fees incurred in conjunction with the G-n:up's restructuring exercise to acquire
new businesses in FY2014

Interest expense increased in line with the increase in the Group’s bomowings. Interest bearing Ioan-s
and borrowings increasad from RME 72.7 million as at 31 Décember 2013 to RMB 78.9 million as at
31 Decamber 2014

The refatively lower éffective tax rates in FY2014 was due to cerain incoma tax credits as a result of
over-pravision in prior periods adjusted in FY2014 and higher operating losses racarded at the holding
company level in FY2014 compared to FY2013 which were not subjected o tax,



2.Statement of Financial Pesition

SELECTED DATA 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
RNB'000 RMB'000

Total assets i | 325987 244,945
Property, plant and equipment and land use rights 82.103 90 532
Contract work-in-progress 30,057 -
Inventaries 26,708 23313
Trade and bills receivables = third parties 113,282 101,073
Other racaivables and prepayments 38178 2403
Cash and bank balances 15,634 14,710
Total liabilities 225,646 168,908
Trade and bills payables — third parties 79,282 41,768
Cther payables and accruals . 13,897 13,203
Due to a related party of corporate shareholder - non-trade 25,684 28329
Loans and borrowings 890,666 80,083
Total shareholders’ equity 44,449 20,596

The net book value of property, plant and eguipment and land usa rights decreased by RMB 7.4 million
due mainly to acquisition of new assets amounting o RMB 3.4 million and assets atiributable fo the
acquisition of the New Subsidianes amounting to RMB 0.9 mlllm offsel by depreciatior and
amortisation In FY2014 of BMB 11,7 million,

Contracts wark-in-progress relating to the green technology segment amounted to RMBE 30,1 million as
at 31 December 2014,

Invenionies increased by RMB 3.4 million from RMB 23.3 millicn as at 31 December 2013 o RMB 26.7
million as at 31 December 2014 as the Group's order books pending delivery was higher in anticipation
of the Chinese New Year in February 2015. Inventories attributable to the new green technology
segment were RMB 0.5 million as.at 31.December 2014,

Trade and bills receivables to third parties increased by RMB 12,2 million from RMB 101.1 million a5

at 31 December 2013 fo RMB 113.3 million as at 31 December 2014, Trade receivables altributable to
the newly acquired green technology segment was RMB 1.0 miliion as at 31 December 2014. The
higher trade and bills receivables was in line with the higher sales in FY2014 and slightly slowsr
repaymant from the packaging segmant customers.

Othar receivables and prepayments increased by RMB 35.8 million from RMB 2.4 million as'at 31
Decambar 2013 to RMB 392 'million as at 31 December 2014, Othar receivables and prepaymants
atiributable to the newly acquired green tachnology segmant was RMB 18.9 million as at 31 Decomber
2014 due mainly lo government grants racalvables that were still outstanding. Other receivables and
prepayments for the packaging segment was also higher as at 31 December 2014 due to a purchase
of short term investments amounting to RMB15.9 million.

Trade and bills payables aliributable to the green technology segment was RMB 22.2 million as at 31
December 2014, Excluding this, trade and bills payables increased by RMB 16.9 million in line with the
higher sales and therefore higher purchases during FY2014.

Other payables and accruals atiributable to the green technology segment was RME 0.5 million as at
31 December 2014, Excluding this, other payables and accruals increased slightly by RME 0.3 million
a5 a result of ganerally higher businass activities in FY2014.

The non-trade amount due to related party of a corporate shareholder of RMB 25.7 million was mainly
due to the entrusted loan of RMB 40,0 million given to the Group from the related party to enable the
Group 1o acquire the Padkaging subsidiaries as par of the restructunng process in FY2012. The Inan
has bean pald down from the dividends received from subsidiares.

Following another profitable year and the acquisition of New Subsidiares and expansion into green
technology business, the Group's net equity attributable to the sharsholders of the Company improved
to RMB 44.4 million as at 31 December 2014 compared to RMB 20.6 million as at 31 December 2013
Also, the Group was able to record a net current asset position of RME 6.4 million as at 31 December
2014 compared to a net current liabilities position of RMB 23.2 million as at 31 December 2013,

3.5tatement of Cash Flow
FY2014 FY2013
! ! ! £ RME'000 RMB'000
Cash {used inpgenerated from operating activities (871) 1,270
Cash used in investing activities {3,304) {4,198}
Cash generated fromi{used in) financing activities ok T17 {5,732)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents {3,258) {B,860)
Cash and cash equivalents as at baginning of year 9.246 17,906
Add: Deposits pledged ) 9646 5,464
Cash and bank balances Y , 15,634 14,710

The Group reported & net increase in cash ar;d bank balances of RMB 0.9 million from RMB 14.7 million
as at 31 December 2013 o RMB 15.6 million as at 31 December 2014.

The net desraase in cash, excluding deposits pladged for bills payable, for FY2014 was RMB 3.3 million

dua o net cash used in operaling activities and invasting activites of RMB 0.7 million and RMB 3.3
million respactivaly, offset by net cash generatad from financing activities of RMB 0.7 millian.

4.Key Risk Factors & Risk Managemant ; - "

Risk of dependency on the level of thePRC gﬂvamml‘s spending and Muarrmt in_energy
conservation management projects

As a significant source of both the revenue of the Group's Green Technology Segment is subsidies
granted by the PRC government, the level of revenue that will be derived from the Green Technology
Segment would largaly depend on continued spending by the relevant PRC government and provincial
gavernment to support energy conservation management projects.

Various faclors would aj‘fe::t the nature, scale, location and timing of the PRC governmeants’ publbc
investment plans in the energy conservation management sechrln the PRC, These factors include the
gavernment's policy and priorities regarding different regional economies across the PRC and the
general condifion and prospects of the overall economy of the PRC. Any significant reduction in the
PRC governments” budgets relating to such energy conservation management sector, will lead to &
decling' in revenue arising from & smaller number of projects, lower contract value for the projects
andior a decling in profit margin due to competition to secure available projects. This could have a
material and advarsa effect on the Green Technology Segment. As such, in the planning slage of thesa



|

upgrading projects, the Group will try, as far as possible, to plan for new underground carparks and
commercial space 'ml_o the estates under upgrading which can be separately sold or rented out for
incoma instead of being totally dependent on government grants or subsidies.

Risk of reliance on independent Sub-contractors to provide various servicas
In undertaking the Group’s Green Technology business, the Group will be engaging independent third

party cantractors to provide various services including installation end construction work for its projects. )

Even though these third party contraciors are responsible for the quality of their services, there is no
assurance that the servicas rendered by such indapendent third party contractors will always be
satisfactory or match the intended quality level. In the event of any loss or damage which arisas from
the default of these independent third parly contractors, the Group may nevertheless be liable for their
default.

The Green Technology business will also be dependent on skilled construction labour, supervisors and
managerial stafl with expenence-in the green architecture and grean technology industry. Any dearth in
{he availability of such labour resources will hava an advarsa eﬂecl.on the oparations and aveniually its

financial parformance.

Furthermore, the Group manages lts cashfiows partially by structuring the projects such that the third
party contractors wiltfinance or oblain financing for the consiruction activities and the Group will only
make payment to these third party contractors in agreed tranches upon safisfactory compietion of such
activiies. There is a risk that any of the contractors may experience financial or other difficulties which
may affect their ability to cany out their works, thus affecting the sales, delaying the completion of the
Group’s projects and/or mﬂullﬁ"lg in additional costs to the Group. Should any of the coniractors fall to
meet the required standards and suitable replacement contractors are not engaged in time, the Group's
business and financial performance may be matenally and adversely affected. Any such failure on the

part of the contractors may also result in adverse publicity for the Group, which in turn may have an !

adverse impact on the Group’s neputation, prospects and growth.

In mitigating these risks, the Group employs a stringent psocess in its selection of third party
sub-contractors on its projects.

Risk of dependency on customers within the consumer goods manufacturing industry
For the Group's packaging business, sales lo ¢ustomers who are manufacturers of ‘consumer goods

.accounted for most of the Group's revenue. The consumer goods manufacturing indusiry is highly

competitive and vulnerable o changes in consumer habits, |ifestyle and aconomic conditions, and may
axparience significant slowdowns in limes of recession and aconomic uncerainty. Tha Group's
business or results of operations will therefore be adversely affected by any significant slowdown in the
consumer goods manufaciuring Industry to the extent that thare may be a decreasa in demnd from
customers in this industry for the Group's packaging prodocts.

Risk of Increases in Raw Matarial Costs

The raw materials that the Group utilise comprise substantially plastic films and resins used for the
manufacture of the packaging products or construction materials like thermal cladding, doors and
windows and green architecture forthe green technology projetes. In order to ensure timely delivery of

quality products to our customers at competitive prices, the Group neads to obtain sufficient quantities.

ofgood quality raw materials &t acceptable prices in a timely manner, As itis common practice in the
industry not to have formal long-term supply arangements with the suppliers, there i no assurance
that the Group will be able to obiain sufficient quantities from suppliers of raw material of acceptable
quality and st scceptable price in a timely manper. Furher, fuctuations in the prices of these raw
materials will have a significant impact on the profit margins and hence the profitability. Such
fluctuations has a direct impact on the prices of raw materials. The lack of availability of these raw
materials will also have a significant impact on the Group's operations.

Power Supply Risk
Due to the expanding econemy and rising affiuence of the PRC population, power consumption is 'on

the rise and is exacerbating the current power supply shortage expenienced in cestain paris of the PRC.
The Group's packaging factories consume large amounts of electrical power for the manufacture of the
plastic fiexible packaging products. An uninterrupted electrical power supply is therefore crucial for the
manufacturing process. In the event of an extended disnuption in the electrical power supply to the
Group's production plants, the manufacturing opsrations will be severely affectad and this will have 8
material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and results of the operation,

F'EE Expansion Risk
Tha Group has recently expanded its busimess to include those of upgrading existing infrastruciure
uskng gresn architaciure and green technolagy, which is a relatively young industry in the' PRC. In 2014,
the Group secured a pilot upgrading project covering a bullt-up area of approximately 160,000 sgm. In
Feabruary 2015, the Group has further announced that it has secured various upgrading projects totaling
more than 5,000,000 sqm. This rapid expansion brings along certain associated risks and may put a
sirain on the Group's resources. Howaver, the Group is canfident that its strong managamant team and
s quality third. party sub-contractors will ensure that the Group-will always be able to. continue 1o
sirengthen the core competencies and adopt a strategy of cautious expanshon.

| ]
Interest rate risk i
Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash fiows of the Group's and the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's and the
Company's exposure fo interest rate risk arises primarily from their interest bearing loans and
borrowings. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risks,

The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of flxed and floating rate debts and tokeeo
majorty of its loans and bcn'rwmgs at fixed rates of interest.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risks are risks that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
pbligations due fo shortage of funds. The Group's and the Company's exposure to liquidity risks arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturites of financial assets and liabiliies, The Group monitors its risk
to a shortage of funds using & recurring liability planning tool,

The Group's and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank accepted drafis and interest bearing loans and borrowings,

Tha Group's and the Company's liquidity risk management policy is to maintain sufficient liquid financial
assals and credli faclliies with reputable banks, Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and bank
balances are deposited with reputable financial instilutions so as lo provide the Group with the lexibility
to meet working capital and capital investment needs.

Foreign currency risk. _. :

The Group operates predominately in People's Republic of China ("PRC") and usually transact in
Renminki {"Rmb"), the official currency in China. Currently, the PRC government imposes control
over foreign currency. Rmb is not freely convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter into
exchange transactions through the Pecple's Bank of China or other-authorised financial insﬁtutio\hs.
Paymenis for imported malerials or services and remitiance of eamings of the subsidiary to the
Company, which is oulside of the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign cumency,  This is
dependent on the foreign currency denominated earmings of the enterprise, or exchanges of Rmb for
foreign’ curency that must be amanged through the People's Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions, Approval for exchanges at the People's Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions is granted to entarprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as purchase of
imported materials and remittance of earnings. While conversion of Rmb into Singapare dollars or
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other currencies can generally be effected at the People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial
institutions, there is no guarantee that it can be effected at all imes.

The Group does not have slgnTﬁcaJﬁ fransaction currency expusuz\éé.

Transactional currancy exposures arising from sales or purchasas that are denominated in a currancy

ather than the respective funictional currencies of Group entities,' primarily SGD and Rmb, are not

significant.

The Group manages its foreign exchange axposure risk by malching, as far as possible, recelpts and
payments in each individual currency. Forelgn currency ks converted into the refevani functional
currency as and when management deems. it necessary. The un-hedged exposure is reviewed and
monitored closely on an ongoing basis and management will consider hedging any malerial exposure
where appropriate.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk of loss.that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should & counterparty.
default on its obligations. The Group's and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arses pamarily from
trade end ather receivables. For other financial assets (including unquoted equities and cash and cash
equivalents), the Group and the Company minimise credit nisk by dealing exclusively with high credit
rating counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth \\mila__l_'nln-irriuing lasses incurmed due to
increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. )t
is the Group's polioy that all custormers who wish 1o frade on credit terms are subject to credit

verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an engoing basis with the

result that the Group's axpnsdra 1o bad debls is not significant. L

5. Returns to Shareholders

With the Group recording another year of profitability In FY 2014, the Group was abla to improve on its
nat-equity balance shaeel position in FY2014, The earnings per share for FY2014 was RMB 9.79 canis
compared to RMB 0.22 cents in FY2013. The net asset value per share for FY2014 was RMB 18.61
cents as compared to RMB 8.62 cenls in FY2013. The Group has also successfully applied for and was
removed from the SGX-ST Walch:list with effect from 21 January 2015,

For the year ended 31 December-2014, the Board of Direclors does nol recommend any dividends
payout as the Group ks currently in a rapid expansion phase for its new green technology business and
foresees befter use of this cashfiows being plowgh back to operations compared to a dividend payout.
The Board of Birectors will confinue to work hard torgenerate greater shareholder value and returns and
is looking forward to continued positive contributions from the new income siream brought in by the
Group’s green technology business.

6. Prospects & Plans

The Group's packaging segment is dependent on consumer spending as its main customers. are

cansumer products companies, The Group expects the economic c"rnala and the trading conditions to
continue to be challenging in the coming year and it is unlikely thal there will be significant increases in
consumer spanding bahaviour.

The Group is of the view that demand for grean technology sarvicas will continue to be strong in China,
Orithe basls that the Group has bean awarded new gréen technology projects and baring unforsean
clrcumstancas, the Group's green tachnology segmant is likely to continue to contribule pasitl-.laly to tha
Group's financials for FY2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is commitied to maintaining a high standard Ufl carporate gavernance and has put in
place self-regulatory corporate practices to protect the inferests of its shareholders and enha
long-term shareholder value,

This Report descrbes the Company’s corporate governance processes and aclivities with specific
refarerca to the Revised Code of Corporate Governanos 2012 issued on 2 May 2012 [“the Coda”)
which is applicabla to the Company with effect from financial year commeancing 1 January 2013,
Where there are deviations from the Code, appropriate explanation will be provided.

Principle 1 : Board's Conduct of Affairs

The Board |s responsible for :
| |

{1) approving the Group's key business strategies and financial objectives; "

(2) owverseeing the conduct of the Group's business to evaluate whether the business is being
properly managed;

(3)  establishing a framework for proper intermal controls and risk management;

{4-1 the Group's ocran'hncs to-faws. regulations, policies, di'ie:uws. guidelines and internal cade’
of conduct; and

{5) | the satisfactory fulfilment of social responsibiliies of the Group,

Matters which are specifically reserved to the full Board for decision are thase involving corporate
plans and budgets, material acquisitions and disposals of assets, share issuances, dividends and
other raturns to shareholders. The Group has adopled a sal of internal Approving Authority & Limit,
setting oul the lavel of authorisation required for spedcified transactons -including thosa that require
the Board's pra-approvals. The Board also delagates cenain of ils functions to tha Audit (“AC™),
Nominating ("NC™) and Remuneration Committees .(*RC"). Each Committee has [is own defined
terms of referance and operating procedures. L
| | |

The Board ks stheduled to meel at least twice a year.and as wamanted by circumstancas. The
Company's Articles of Asscciation allow a board meeting to be conducted by way of a telephone
conference or by means of a similar communications equipment whereby all persons participating in
the meeting are able to hear each other,

Since 1 January 2074 till the end of the financial year on 31 December 2014, the Board met five times
fo_review the Group's business operations and financial rmance. The attendances of
Directors at the meeﬁnﬂs of the'Board and Board Committees during the year are disclosed as
follows:
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Zhany Daliang - 5

Notes:-
(1] Appointed as & Director on T8 July 2014

{2} Appainted a5 a Director on 11 March 2014

{3 Appointed a5 a Director on 10 June 2014

{4) Appaointed as a Dinsctor an 11 March 2014 snd regigned as & Director on 18 July 2014 .

{8) Resigned as & Director an 10 June 2014 4 o
{6} Resigned as & Director on 11 March 2014

*  Includes affendance by invitation
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Whan the existing directors were apgointed, the Company conducted a comprahansive orentation
programme, which was presentad by the CEO, to provide them with extensive background information
about tha Group's struclure an!d core values, |ts stratagic directlon and corporate governance praclices
as well as industry-specific knowledge. Directors were invited to visit the Group's operational facilities
in China and to meet with the Management to gain a better understanding of the Group's business
oparations. The onentation programme gives the directors an understanding of the Group's businesses
o enable them to assimilate into their new role. It also asliows the new directors 1o get acquainted with
the Management, thereby facilitating Board Interaction and independent access to the Management.

The Board as a whole is updated regularly on risk management, corporate govemance, Industry
spedific knowledge and the key changes in the relevant reguiatory requirements and financial reporting
standards, so as to enable them to properly discharge their duties as Board or Board Commities
members.

MNew releases issued by the Singapore Exchange Securifies Trading Limited ("SGX-ST') and

Acoounting and Corporate Regulatory Authorily ("ACRA”) which afe. relevant to the directors are
circulated to the Board. The Company Secrelary also informs the directors of upcoming conferences
and seminars relevant to their roles as directors of the Company.

The Company will pmﬂﬂa a formal letter upon tha appointment of new Directors.

Principle 2 : Board Composition and Guidance

Tha Board currently mmprise'ls six Difectors, including two Exacutive Diractors, ana Non-Executive
Director and threa Independent Direclors. The compositon complies with: the Code's reguirement
contained In Guideline 2.1 whereby It i required that the indepandent directors should make up of at
least one third of the Board.

As at the date of the report, the Board compnses the following directars:-

Executive Directors:

Wu Xueying " (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Li Bin (Exgcutive Director)

Non-executive ﬂimﬂw\u:

Zhao Lighi @ {Mon-Executive Chairman)

Kuan Cheng Tuck ™  (Independent Directar)
Lu King Serig # (Independent Directar)
Yao Fengge ™ (Indapendent Diractar)
Notes:

{1) Appointed as Director on 11 March 2014
(2)  Appointed as Dirsctor on. 18 July 2014
{3) Appolnted as Directors on 10 Juna 2014

The Board has examined s size and is of the view that the current board size of six Directors is
appropriate, taking into account the naturg and scope of the Group's operations. The independent
directors: consist of respacted individuals from different backgrounds whose core competencles,
qualifications, skills and experience are extensive and complemantary. Profiles of the Directors are
found on page Pages 9 o 12 of this Annual Report.

The Company has a good balance of directors with a wide range of skills, experience and QUEE‘U&SH
in the fields of operations, management, financial, legal and accounting. Each director has been
appointed on the strength of his calibre, experience and stature and is expectad to bring a'ualuahlg
range of experience and expartise 1o contributs 1o the development of the Group strategy and the
performance of its business, The Board also includes cne female dirsctor in pecagnition of the
importance and value of gander diversity,

All appointments and re-elections of directors are reviewed and recommended by the Nominating
Committes (*NC") to the Board. The independenca of each independent direcior is reviewad by the
NC annually in accordance with the guidelines of the Coda.

Tha Board considers an independent director as one wha has no relationship with the Company, its
redatad companies or iis officers. its 10% shareholders or |is officars that could interfera, or be
reasanably perceived: to interfere, with the exercisé of the director's independent. business
judgemeant with a view to the bast interests of the Company: The independence of sach director is
reviewad annually by NO- Each independent director 1z required to complete a Direclor's
Independence Checklist annually to confirm his independence basad on the guldelnas satout In the:
Code.

The independent directors also communicate regularly (sometimes without the presence of the
management) to discuss matters such as the Group’s financlal performance, corporate governance
and proposals on the Group's strategies.

Principle 3 : Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ")

The Group’s Non-Executive Chairman is Mr Zhao Lizhi while the Group's CED is Ms Wu Xueying.
The Chairman and CEDQ are not related o each other, The roles of the Chairman and CEC are
thus separate and their responsibilities are clearly defined to ensure a check and balance of
power and authority, The Chairman will, amongst other responsibiliies, lead the Board, ensure
effective communication with shareholders, encourage constructive relationship between the
Board and Management, as well as between Board members, and promote high standards of



corporate govemnance, The CED manages the business of the Company and implements the Board's
detisions.

The Company will review and consider the appointment of lead indéi:er!dml director in future,
Principle 4 : Board Membership )

Principle 5 ; Board Performance

The members of the NC ara as follows:-

Kuan Cheng Tuck (Chairman)

Lu King Sang (Member)

Yao Fangge (Member)

The NC met twica during FY2014. Tha NC is regulated by a sel of Tarms of Referance and ils rala is
io establish a formal and transparent procass for -

1) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new executive and non-execufive
directors, including making recommendations on the composition of the Board generally and the
balance between executive and non-executive Directors appointed to the Board;

2

-

re-nomination of Directors having regard to the Direcior's contribution and performance;

3

making plans for succession, in particular for the Chairman and Chief Executive;

4} determining annually the i?‘idependenu& of Directors; L

5 rs'-riewingi-he Board structure, size and mpﬁsilim regularly;

8) deciding whethar or not a Director Is able to and has been adeguately carrying out his duties as a
“director; and )

7) recommending Directars who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-slection.

Al present, new directors are appointed by way of a board resolution upon the Nominating Commitiee's

approval of their appoinimant. Thenew direciors shall hold office until the naxt Annual General Mealing.
{"AGM") and shall be aligible for re-alection. In iis search and salection process for new directors, the -

NC taps on the resources of Directors’ parsonal contacts and recommendations of polential candidates
and appraises the nominges o ensure that the candidates possaess relevant experiance o contribute 1o
the Group, having regard to the attributes of the existing Board and the requirements of the Group.

The NC then meets with the shortiisted polential candidates with the appropriate profile to assess

suitability and to ensure that the candidales are aware of the expeciation and the level of commitment
required, before nominating the mosi suitable candidate to the Board for approval
ﬂI"IEI appoiniment as dlrectur

The role of the NC also includes the respurnslblht:.' of reviewing the renomination of directors wha retire

by rotafion, taking into consideration the director’s Infegrily, independence mindedness, contribution
and performance (such as altendance, paricipation, preparedness and candour) and any oiher
factors as may be determined by the NC. .
All directors, including the CEQ, submit themseives for re-nomination and re-appointment at regular
intervals of at least once every three years,

\

Pursuant to Aricle 81 of the Company's Articles of Association, one-third of the Board are to retirs
fram office by rotation and be subject to re-appointment at the Company's AGM. In addition, Article
97 of the Company’s.Article of Association provides thal a newly appainted director must relire and
submit himself for re-appointment at the next AGM following his appointment: Thereafter, he is
subject io be re-appointed at least onge every three years.

Tha Board recognises the confribution of its independent directors who over lime have developed
deep Insight Into the Group's businesses and operations and who are therefore able to provide
invaluable contributions to the Group. As such, the Board has not set a fixed term of offica for each
of its independent directors so as to be able (o retain the services of the directors as necessary,

The NC has reviewed and recommended the following re-slections at the forthcoming AGM:

Li Bin {Ratiring pursuant to Article 91)
Zhao Lizhi {Retiring pursuant fo Ariicle 97)
Kuan Cheng Tuck  (Retiring pursuant to Article 87)
Lu King Seng {Retiring pursuant to Article 97)
Yao Fengge (Retiring pursuant to Ariicle 87 ;.

The Board has socepted the recommendations and the retiring Directors will be offering themsslves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM,

Each member of the NC shall abstain from voling on any resclution in raspect of the assessment of
his perfarmance or re-nomination as a direclor,

Althaugh the indepandent directors hold directorships in other companies which are nat in the Group,
the Board is of the viaw that such multiple board representations do not hinder them from carrying out
their duties as directors as long as fhe numbers of board representations on listed companies for any
one director do not exceed ten. These directors would widen the sxpecrlanne of tha Board and give it
a broader perspective. e ; "

The NC has established a process for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its
Board Commiliees and for assessing the cantribution by the Chairman and each individual Direcior
to the effectiveness of the Board, The performance criteria which have bean approved by the Board
for the Board evaluation includes an evaluation of the size and composition of the Board, the Board's
access lo information, accountability, Board processes, Board perfonﬂanm in relation to dlscmrgmg
its principal responsibilities. In its assessment, the NC takes Into consideration the frequency of the'
Board meelings, Board independence, the rate at whmh issues raised are adequately dealt with, the
effectiveness of the Board Commitiees, and reparis from the various committees. Given the redatively
small size of the Board, the Board and the NG are of the oplnlun that there is no need at present th
conduct a separate formal assessment of the Board Committees ofher than the assessments being
carnied out in respect of individual Directors and the Board.

g
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The Board and the NC evaluate individual Directors an whether each Director continues to contribute
effectively and demonstrate commilment to the role (including commitment of me for board and
committes meetings, and any other duties) and have endeavoured to ensure that Directors appointed
to the Board possess the experience, knowledge and skills critical to the Group’s business, so as to
enable the Board to make sound and well-considered decisions. The NC also considers whether the
Director has a reasonable understanding of the Company’s business and the industry, the Director's
working relationship with the other members of the Board, as well ds feedback from other Directors,

The NC has reviewed the overall pedormance of the Board in terms of its role and responsibilities and
the conduct of its affairs as a whole for the financial year and is of the view that the performance of the
Board as a whole has been satisfactory. Although some of the Board members have multiple board
representations, the NC is satisfied that sufficient time and attention has beern given to the Group by the
Directors,

Principle 6 : Access to Information

In order to ensure thal the Board 15 able to {ulfil its responsibllities, managemant provides tha Board.
membears with guarterly managemant accounts and all relevant information. In addition, all relevant
information on materlal evenis and fransactions are circulated to directors as and when they arise.
Whenever necessary, senior management staff will be invited to attend the Board meetings and Audit
Commitlee meetings to answer queries and provide detailed insights info their areas of operations, A
quarlerly report of the Group's activities is also provided to the Direclors. The Company Secretaries
attend all Board meehnga and meetings of the Board oun'lmlllesﬁ of the Company and ensure that
Board procadures are followed and that applicable rules and legulatlons are complied with

The Board, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties, has access 1o :
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Company's expense, - .

The Board I;I1l'£l'l'1tllﬂl5 have separate and Mdsp.wwdsnt access to the company secretares, The
Company Secretaries attend all board meetings and audit committee meetings. The Company
Secretaries assist the Board to ensure that Board proceduras and rules and regulations are complied
with, \

Principle 7 : Procedures for Developing Remuneration Palicies
Principle 8 : Level and Mix of Remuneration
Principle 9 : Disclosure on Remuneration

The Remuneration Commiites ("RC") comprises the foliowing Directors:-

Lu King Seng {Chairman}
Kuan Cheng Tuck (Membser)
Yao Fangge {Mambﬂt_)

The RC is scheduled to meet at least once a year and had done so to review and recommend to the
Board the remuneration packages and employmenis confracts of directors, key management
personnel, including those employees related to the executive direciors and coniroliing shereheiders of :
the Group for FY2014. The'RC is regulated by a set of Terms of Reference and has access to '
independent professional advice, if necessary.

The RC’s main duties are :-

() o review and recommend (o the Board In consultation with the Chairman of the Board a
framework of ramuneration and lo determineg the specific remunaration packages and lerms
of amployment for each of the executive dlmmm and key managemant personnel of the
Group, Im:ludlng thaose employees related 1o Iha exacullve direclors and mn!mﬂlng
sharehalders of tHa Groupi

{b) to recommend to the Board, in consuitation with the Chairman of the E.uel:;:i. the Green Bulld
Employes Share Option Schemes or any long term Incentive schemes which may be sat up
from time to time and to do all acts necessary in.connection therewith; and

{c) to camry oul lts duties In the manner that It desmed expadient, subjact always to any
regulations or restrictions that may 'be imposed upon the RC by the Board of Directors from
time to time. ; .

As part of its review, the RC shall ensure that

(8) | &ll aspects of remuneration, including director's fees, salaries, allowanoes, bunusas. oplions
and benefits-in-kinds should be coversd.t

by the remuneration packages should be comparabla within the Indusitry and comparabie
companies and shall include a performance-related element coupled with appropriate and
meaninglul measures of assessing individual exscutive directors' and seniar
exaculives'/divisional directors’ parfarmance.

c)  the remuneration package of employees related to execulive directors and cnn‘lrnllhlig
shareholders of the Group are in line with the Group's staff remuneration guidelines and
commensurate with their respective job scopes and levels of responsibilities.

Each mamber of the BC will abstain from reviewing and approving his own remuneration and the
remuneration packages of persons redated to him.

The non-axecutive and indepandent directors do not have any service contracts. They ans paid a
basic fee and additional fees for serving on any of the Committees The Board recommends paymant
of such fess to be approved by shareholdars as a lump sum payment at the Annual General Meating
of the Company. Executive directors do not recelve directors' fees: The executive directors are paid
In accordance with thelr respective service agreements. A breakdown, showing the level and mix of
each individual director's remuneration payable for FY2014 is as-follows: |



Directors’ Remuneration
Remuneration Salary & Performance Ofther Total

Band Fees Based Benefits Remuneration
55000 Yo Bonuses % S5'000
%
Executive Director )
W Xueying <250 .~ 100 = ' - 15
Li Bin =250 100 E 3 36
Non-Executive Directors
Zhao Lizhi 2 <250 - - -
Lien Kait Long ™ =250 100 - - 20
Lee Teck Leng ™ =250 100 - - 20
Raobson
Kuan Cheng Tuck # =250 100 = - 23
Lu King Seng =250 100 S - 20
Yao Fengge <250 100 . - 17
Notes: .

{1) Appointed on 11 March 2014,
{2) Appointed on 18 July 2014,
{3) Resignad on 10 June 2014,
(4) Appointed on 10 June 2014.

The Company has adopted the Greer Bulld Employes Share Option Scheme {"ES0S"), which was |

appraved by shareholders on 30 September 2004, To date, no options had been granted. The ES0S
has expired on 28 September 2014.

The overall wage policies for the employees are linked to performance of the Group as well as the
individual and determined by the Board and the RC. The Board will respond to any queries raised at
AGMs pertaining to such policies. Accardingly, it is the opinion of the Board that there is no necessity
for such palicies to be approved by the sharehalders,

Disclosure of the Group's key management personnel's remuneration for FY2014 is as follows -

Name of - Remuneration Salary = Performance Other  Total
Executive Band % Based Benefits 5$'000

' S%'000 Bonuses %

o

Jong Voon Hoo <250 100 . . 168
Green Technology
Segment!
Jiang Xikun <250 100 - - 10
Sun Honglei , <250 100 Aty . 13
Yang Xiaoyu <250° 100 - LA 11
Packaging Segment
Ye Jianming <250 100 - - 109
Zhai Lianging <250 100 - 5 76
Ye Li =250 100 - - 62
Cao Weijie <250 100 < - 50

Note:
(1) The green technology segment was only acquired in June 2014. As such, the remuneration of
these executives shown in-the above table only represents remuneration after the acquisition.

There is ne employee who is immediate family member of a director or the CED.

The annual aggregate B-i'I'IOUI'\‘t «of the total remuneration peid o key rrtanagernent personnal for
FY2014.is approximately S$498,000.

There are no termination or refirement benefits that are granted to the Directars, the CEQ and the key
exscutivas (who are not direciors).

The Company does not use contractual provisions to aflow the Group to reclaim incentive
components of remuneration from executive directors.and key management personnel in exceptional
circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss fo the
Company. Executive directors owe a fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company should be able to
avail itself o remedies against the executive directors in the event of such breach of fiduciary dufies,

The RC can, upon dirsclion by the Board, engage any extemal professional advice on matters
relating to remuneration as and when the need arises,



Principle 10 : Accountability

The Board is accountable 1o shareholders for the management of the Group. The Board will update
shareholders on the operations and financial position of the Company through quarterly, half-yearly and
full year results announcements as well as fimely announcements of other matiers as prescribed by the

relevant rules and regulations. Managemsnt is accountable to the Board bv providing the Board with

4

necassary financial information for the discharge of its duties,

in line with fhe requirements of The Slngapora Exchange Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-5T"),
negative assurance confirmations on half-yearly financial rmsults were issued by the Direcior confirming
that to the best of ils knowledge, nothing had come o tha attention 1o the Board which may render the
Company's financial results ta be false and misleading in any material aspect.

Price sansitive information is publicly released either before the Company meets with any group of
invastors or analysts or simultanecusly with such meetings.

Principle 11 : Risk Management-and Internal Conirols

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring that management maintains a sound
gysiem of infernal controls 1o safeguard the shareholders” investments and the Group's assets. The
Board believes thal, in the absence of any evidence 1o the contrary, the system of Intemal control
maintained by manﬂgament and that was in place throughout the financial year provides reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material financial misstatements of loss, and include the
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting rel:ords. the reliability of financial
information, compliance with appropriate legisiation, regulation and best practice, and the identification
and containment of business rlsk J

The CEQ ang Chief Financial OFﬁoerq CFO") have provided a letter of assurance that gs at the end of
FY2014, (a) the financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Company's operations and finances; and (b) the Company’s nsk management
and internal control systems are effective,

Mo risk commitee has been established as the AC has assumed the. responsibility of the risk
management function and oversees the overall adeguacy and effectivenass of the Company's risk
management systems and procadures.

The Board and AC have reviewed the adequacy of the Group's internal conlrols thal address tha

Group’s financial, operational and compliance risks. Based on the work performed by the intermnal
auditors, raviewed by management, and the statutory audit by the external auditors, the Board and
Audit Commitiea are-of the opinion that the Group's internal controls, addressing financial, operational
and compliance risks, are adequate,

The AC, together with the Board, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal conlrols
put in place to address the key financial, operational and mmmlaﬁm risks affecting the operations.
Basad on the internal controls established apd maintained by the Group, work performed by the intemal
and exiemal auditors, reviews performed by the management and the Board, and confirmations of
assurances received from the CED and CFO, the Board with the concurrence of the AC is of the
opinion that the sysiem of internal controls, including financial, operational, compliance and information
technology contrals, and risk management systems put in place by the management is adequate and
effective o address financial, operational and compliance risks of the Group,

Principle 12 : Audit Committee
The Audit Committee ("AC”) comprises the following Directors:,

Kuan Cheng Tuck (Chairman)
Lu King Seng (Member),
Yao Fengge (Member)

Tha AC is scheduled to meet two times a year and had done so in FY2014. The AC is regulated by
& sel of Terms of Referance and performs the following functions:-

1) reviews financial statements and consolidated financial statéments before submission 1o the
Beard focusing in particular, on:-

a) significant financial reporting kssues and judgements

b) changes in accounting policies and practices

&) major risk areas

d) significant adiustments resulting from the audit

8}  thegoing concern statement |

f)  compliance with accounting standards

g) compliance with stock exchange and statutory/regulatory requirements.
2) reviews with external, auditors audit plans (including the nature and scope of the audit), audit,
report and the results of the exteérnal auditors’ examination;

-

3) reviews the quﬁm given by the Group's officers fo the extemnal auditors;

—

4

-

discuss problems and concerns, if &ny, arising from the interim and final audits, in consultation
with the external auditors and the internal auditors where necessary;

§) nominates extarnal auditors for re-appointment and reviews their independence;

—_—

6) reviews interested parson transactions;
7) reviews internal audit findings and adequacy of the internal audit function; and
8) reviews the adequacy of the Company's internal cantrols, ) *

All members of the AC have had many years of experiance in senior management positions in
different sectors. The Board is of the view that the members of the AC have sufficient financial
management expertise and experience to discharge the AC's functions.

The external auditors have full access to the AC and the AC has full access to the management, The
AC has express power o commission investigations info any matters, which has or is likely to have
material impact on the Group's operating results or financial results.



For FY2014, the AC met ance with the external auditors without the presence of the management. The
AC has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the extemal auditors for FY2014 and
is safisfied that such services would not in the AC's opinion, affect the independence of the external
auditors, The aggregate amount of fees paid to the external auditors for FY2014 has been disclosed
in the financial statements. Rules 712 and 716 of the Listing Manual of SGX-ST have been complied
with.

In addition, the Company has also pul in place a whistle-blowing framework, endorsed by the AC,
where employees of the Company may, in confidence, raise concems about possible corporate
impropristies in matters of financial reporting or other matters. To ensure indepandent investigation of
such matters and for appropriate follow up action, it was decided by the Company, after consultation
with the AC, that all whistle-blowing reports ane o be sent to the AC Chairman or the head of tha
Company's in-house legal depariment, who will have direct access io the AC. Details of the
whistie-biowing policies and arrangements have been made avaitable to all employses. There wera no
reparted inclidents pertaining to whistle-Blowing ler FY2014,

Principle 13 : Internal Audit

As recommended by the AC, the Company has guisourced the internal-audi function to an indepandent
accounting and auditing firm, Crowe Horwath First Trust Risk Advisory Pie Lid, a firm of certified public
accountants. The internal auditor will report ta the Chairman of the AC on audit matters and also to the
CFO foradministrative matters. The internal audit plan will be approved by the AC and the results of the
audit findings will be submitied to the AC for its review in its meeling. The scope of the intemal audit will
cover the audits of all operations. For FY2014, the AC has also met once with the intemal auditors
without the presence of the management

Material pon-compliance and' intemal accounting control weaknesses noted during their audits are !

reported to thpAC together with their recommendations. Management will foliow up on the external and
internal audifors’ recommendations in & joint effort to strengthen the Group's internal cantral sysiems.

Principle 14 ; Shareholder Rights
Principle 15 : Communication with Shareholders
Principle 16 : Conduct of Shareholder Meetings

The Company recognisas the need to communicate with shareholders an all material matters affacting
the Group and does not practise selective disclosure, Price sensitive announcements, including interim
and full-year results, dre released through SGXNET prompily and-subsaguently posted on the
Company’s wabsite. In presanting these financial results, it Is the aim of the Board to provide

shareholders with detailed analysis and a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's

performance and prospects. All press refeases are announced through SGXNET before they are
published. The Company may also hold media meetings on significant evenis,

All shareholders of the Company receive the Annual Report and Nulma of AGM which can be accessed
from the Company's websiie. The Notice of AGM Is also advertised in a national newspaper. At AGMs,
shareholders are glven the opportunity to air their views and ask quesiions regarding the Group and its
businesses. Separate | resolutions on each distinct issue are pmposed at general meetings for approval.
The external auditors and legal advisors {if necessary) are present 1o assist the Directors in addressing
any queries by shareholders,

The Adicles of Association of the Company allow 8 member of the Company, who is unable to aftend

the general meetings in person, to appoint one or two proxies fo attend and vote instead of the member.

Al the AGM, shareholders are given opportunities to express their views and ask the Board and
management quesiions regarding the operations of the Group, The Chaimman or its designate is
available at the AGM to answer those questions regarding the operations of the Group. The
Chairman of the AC, RC and NC are also available at the AGM to answer those questions relating to
the work of these Committees,

The Company Secretaries prepare minutes of general meéﬁnga. which incorporates substantial
comments or queries, if any, from shareholders and responses from the Board, management and
auditors.

For greater transparency and fairmess in the voling process, veting at shareholders’ mestings were
conducted by poll sinca 2012, This allows all shareholders present or represented at the maetings to
vole on a one-share-one vole basis. The resulls of the shareholders’ meelings are announced via
SGXNet aftar the meetings.

Tha Company does nol have a fixed dividend policy. The form, frequency and amount of dividands
will depend on.the Company’s eamings. general financial condition, resulls of operations, capital
requirements, cash fiow, general business condition, development plans and other factors as the
directers may deem appropriate. For FY2014, the Company will not be paying dividends to
shareholders as the Group has just expanded its income stream o include those of upgrading
existing infrastructure with green technology and architecture and has secured several upgrading
contracts which may require significant cashflows.

The Company will review its Arficles of Association from fime to time to make amendments to the

Articles of Association o be in line with the applicable requirements or rules and requlations.
goveming the continuing obligations : -

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

In line with Rule 1207(19) of the Listing Manua| of SGX-5T, the Company has adopted the Internal
Code of Best Practices with regard to securities transactions (“the Internal Code”) by its emplayees.
The employees have been informed not to deal in the Company's securities whilst in possession of
price sensitive information and during the period commencing one maonth befare the announcement
of the Company's resulls and ending on the date of the announcement.. Thay are also discouraged
fram dealing in the Company's shares on shorl-term considerations.

Diractors and Officers are also expected to observe insider-frading laws at all times even when
dealing with securitles within the parmittad;trading perod.

All Direclors and Officers are required to confirm annually that they have complied with and are not
in breach of the provisions of the Internal Code.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no material tontracts (including loans) of the Company or its subsidiaries involving thli?r
interests of the CEQ, each director or contrplfing shareholder subsisted at the epd of the financial
year or have been enlerad info since the end of the previous financial year, except as already
disclosed in the financial statements,



RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group regularly reviews and improves its business and operational activities to identify areas of
significant business risks as well as to take appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The Group reviews all significant control poficies and procedures and highlights all significant matters
to the AC and the Board,

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted an internal poticy in respact of any transactions with interested parson within
the definition of Chapter 8 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and has set out procedures for review
and approval of all interested person transactions.

The aggregate value of all interested person transactions during the financial year ended 31 December
2014 wera as follows:

Aggregate value offall
interested person
transactions during the  Aggregate value of-all

financial year under interested person
review (excluding transactions during the
transactions léss than financial year under
S$100,000and review under
transactions conducted  shareholders’ mandate
under shareholders’ pursuant to Rule 520
mandate pursuant & (excluding transactions
Rule 920) less than S§100,000)
RME 000 RME'000

Name of Interested Persons and Nature of Transactions

Income
Youcan Foods (Hangzhou) Co.,
Ltd. - Sales of goods - 5,495

Harbin Dali Aluminium Doors &
Windows Products Co., Lid,
- Purchases of goods - 3,195

Harbin Dali Aluminium Doors &
Windows Products Co., bid. -
- Rental of premises 300 =

Green Build Technology Limited
{formerly known as Youyue International Limited) and its Subsidiaries
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Green Build Technolegy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Directors' report

The directors are pleased to present their reporn to the members togather with the audied
consolidated financial statements of Green Build Technclogy Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the [Group”) End the balance sheet of the Cmﬂpany for the financial ysar
ended 31 December 2014,

Directors

The directors of the Company in office &t the date of this repart are;

Zhaao Lizhi Non-Exacutive Chalrman (appointed on 18 July 2014)

Wu Xueying Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (appointed on 11 March 2014)
Li Bin Executive Director

Kuan Cheng Tuck Independsnt Director (appainted on 10 June 2014)

Lu King Seng Independent Director (appainted on 10 June 2014)

Yao Fangga Indépendent Diractor (appointed on 10 June 2014)

In accordance with the Company's Aricles of Association, Zhao Lizhi Li Bin, Kuan Cheng Tuck Lu
King Seng and Yao Fengge retire and, baing eligible, offer themselves for re-slection.

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Except as disclosed under "Oftions”, neither at the end of nor at @y time during the financial year
was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objecis are, or one of whose objectis, fo enabla
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the: ar.qulsmnn of shares or debanturas
of the Company or any ofher body corporata.

Directors' interests in shares and debentures

The following directors, who hald office at the end of the financial yaar, had, according to the reqgistar
of directors’ shareholdings required lo be kept under Section 1684 of the Singapore Companies Act,
Cap. 50, an inferest in shares of the Company and refated corporations {other than wholly-owned
subsidianes) as stated below:

Direct interest Deemed interest
At the - At the
beginning of beginning of
financial year financial year
3 or date of  Atthe end of or date of | At the end of

Name of director appointment financial year appointment financial year
The Company
Ordinary shares . :
Zhao Lizhi - - 157518111 157,518,111
Wu Xueying 8,360,000 8,360,000 - -
The Holding Company |
Ordinary shares ’
Zhaa Lizhi = = 100,000 100,000
The Ultimate Holding
Company
Registered share capital
Zhao Lizhi RMB3 150,000 RMB3,150,000 RMB1, 350,000 RMB1,350,000

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Directors’ report

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures (cont'd)

There was no change in any of 1113 abgve-mentioned interests between the end of the financial year
and 21 January 2015.

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year hed
Interasts in shares, shane oplions, warrants or debentures of the Campany or of related corporations,

either at the beginning of the financial year, at the date of appointment or at the end of the financial
year, or date of appointment if later, or at the end of the financial year,

Directors’ contractual benefits

Except as disclosed In the financial stalements, since the ‘end of the previous financial year, ‘ho
director of the Company has recelved or bacome entifled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a relaied corporation with the director, or with a firm of which the director is
& member, or with a cémpany in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

Options |

On 30 September 2004, the shareholders approved a share option scheme known as Grean Bulld
Employee Share Cption Scheme (the "ESOS"), The ESOS will provide efigible participants with an
opportunity to paricipate in the equity of the Company and to motivate them towards betier
performance through increased dedication and loyalty, The ESOS, which forms an infegral and
Imporiant component of a compensation plan, s designed to primarily reward and retain executive
directors, non-axecutive directors and employees whose servicas are vital to the well being and
success of the Group.' The ES0S will be administered by the Remuneraticn Committee, and has
expired on 28 September 2014, 1

As at 31 December 2014, no options have been granted under the ESOS.
Audit Committes

Tha Audit Committes carried oul ils functions in accordance with section 201B(5) of the Singapore
Companies Acl, Cap. 50, including the following:

«  Reviewed thi audit plans.of the internal and extemal auditors of the Group and the Company, and
reviewed the internal audifor's evaluation of the adequacy of the Company's system of internal
accounting controls and the assistance given by the Group and the Company's management ter
the external and infernal auditors;

= Réviewed the half-yearly and annual financial statemants and the independent auditors’ report on
the annual financial statements of the Company before their submission to the board of directors;

» Reviewed effecliveness of the Company's material internal controls, including financial,
operational and wrmllame controds and nisk rnaﬂagernenl via reviews carmed oul by the infernal
auditors;

= Met with the external auditors, internal auditors, other commitiees, and management in separate
axecutive sessions to discuss any matters that these grobips balieve should be dlsa.lssa-d
privately with the Audit Committes;

- Reviewed legal and regulatory matters that may have a materal impacl on the financial
statements, related compliance policies and programmes and any reports received from
regglalurs;

= Reviewad'the cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

« Reviewed the nalure and axtent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors;

T



Green Bulld Technolegy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Directors' report

Audit Committee (cont'd)

« Recommended to tha board of directors the extemal auditors 10 be nominated, approves the
compansatjon of the external auditors, and reviews the scope and results of the audit;

s Reported actions and minutes of the Audit Committee {o the board of directors with such
recommendations as the Audit Commitiee considers appropriate; and

» -Reviewed interesied person transactions in accordance with the requiremenis of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited's Listing Manual.

The Audit Committes, having reviewad all non-audit sarvices provided by the external auditors to the
Group, Is salisfied thal the nature ahd extent of such services would notaffect the independence of the
external auditors. The Audit Commillee has also conducted a review of inlerested person transactions:

The Audit Commities convened two meetings during the ear with full attendance from all membars.
The Audit Committes has also met with the intemal and external auditors, withou! the presance of the
Company's managemant, at |east ence a year,

Further details regarding the ﬁ.udlt Committee are disclosed in mé.bomoﬂm Govemance Repodt, in
the Annual Report.

Auditor

Emst & Yuu.ng LLP have expressed their willingness to accept reappeoiniment as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Zhaa Lizhi
Diractar

Wu Xueying
Director

Singapore
13 April 2015

| I |
Green Bulld Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement by directors

We, Zhao Lizhi and Wu Xueying, being two of the directors of Green Build Technology Limited (the

"Company”), do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, \

(I the accompanying balance sheets, consclidated income siatement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consofidaled statement of changes in equity and consolidaied
statement of cash flow together with notes thereto are drawn up 50-as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and the
results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on
that dafe, and

{ii) =t the date of this statement, l-ﬁara are reasonable grounds (o believe that the Company will be
able to pay its dabls as and when they fall due,

On bahalf of thi board of directors,

Zhao Lizhi
Directar

Wu Xueying
Director

Singapaore
13 April 2015



Green Build Technolegy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Independent auditor's report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Independent auditor's report to the members of Green Build Technology Limited

Report on the financial statsments

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Build Technology Limited (tha
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on peges 79 to 148, which comprise tha
balance sheets of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and the consplidated
income statement, consolidaled statement of comprehensive Income, consclidated statement of
changes in eguity, and consolidated statement of cash flow of the Group for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant aceounting policies and other explanatony information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management |s responsible for the preparation of financlal statemenits that give a true and fair view In
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Acl, Chapter 50 (the “Act’) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of intemal
accounting conirols sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that asseis are safeguarded against
loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions.are properly authorised and that they are
recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance
sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.

Awvuditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statemenis based on our audit. We

-conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standands on Auwditing, Those standards reguire

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbiain reascnable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing proceduras o oblain audit evidenca about tha amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relavant to the antity's

praparation of financial statémants that give a true and fair view in arder to design audit proceduras

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinicn on the
affectiveness of the antity’s internal cantral. An audit also includes evaluating the app'mpriabanq_ss of
accounting palicles used and the reasonableness of accounlting astimales made by manageamant, as
wall as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Wa belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion \

In gur opinion, the consclidaled financial stalements of the Group and the balance'sheet of the
Company are propery drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial
Reparting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 and the resuits, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Group
for the year ended on that date.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Independent auditor's report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 ~

Independent auditor's report to the members of Green Bulld Technology Limited

Emphasis of Matier

We draw attention 1o Note 2.1 tothe financial statemeants. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group's cash flow from operaling activibes is a net outflow of RMB (671,000, As at 31
December 2014, the Company's current labllities exceaded its current assets by RMB 19 million,
and the Company has a nat equity deficit of RMB 11 million. These factors indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the ‘Group and the Company's
abilities to continue a5 golng concams. As disclosed In Note 2.1, the ability of the Group and tha
Company to continue as going contems is based on the following:

{a) Undertaking from. ultimate helding company to provide financial support to the Group an:i
pany to enable them to pay the amounts due to & related party of a corporate
shareholder should the amounts be recalled; - .

{b) continuing financial support from its bankers; and

() ability of the Group to generate positive cash flows from #ts operations and the Company to

receive funding from its subsidiaries.

if the Group and the Company are unable to continue in operational exislence for the foreseeable

future, the Group and the Company may bie unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal
coursa of business and adjusimants may have lo be made |o reflect the situation that assets may
nead to be realised ather than in the narmal course of business and at amounts which could differ
slgnl!’ncéntly from the amounts at which they are currenily recorded in the Group's and Company's
batance sheets. In addition, the Group and the Company may have o reclassify non-current
assats and liabilites as current assels and labilities respactively. No stch adjustmants have bean
mada to these financial stalaments,

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
| ]

In our opinion, the accounting and other records reduimd by the Act to be kept by the Company
have been properly kept in accordancs with the provisions of the Act.

Emst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapaore

13 April 2015
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Green Bulld Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Consoclidated incoma statement
For the financlal year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbl)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

_ Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Interast expense on interest-bearing loans
Bank charges A

Profit before income tax

Income tax

Met profit for the year

Mt profit for the year attribitable to:
Owners of the Company
Nen-controlling Interests

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company
- Basic and diluted (cents)

The sccompanying accounting policles and explanatory notes form an Integral part of the financial

statements. \

Nate

2014 2013
RKBOO0 y RMB'000
289,651 245,418
(244, 646) {207.591)
45,005 37 BT
33,048 5,380
(F.178) (6,574}
{22,087) (21.360)
(7.843) (3,086)
41,845 13187
(5.240) (4.401)
(70 21}
36,535 B,575
(8,138]) (2 868}
28 399 5,907
23,382 770
5017 5437
28,399 5,907
9,79 0.32

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated income statement
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi} \

Net pm;th for the year
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that may be reclgssified subsequently fo profit or loss
Foreign currency transiation, net
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

| ¥

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Maon-controlling interests

2018 ' 2013
RMB'D0D RIME000
28,399 5.907
47 782
471 782
28,870 £.699
23,853 1,562
5017 5137
28,870 6,809

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

stafements. \



Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Balance sheats
As at 31 Decomber 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi}

Group Company
\ . Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
; RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'DOD
MNon-curfent assets / 4
Praperty, plant and aquipment 9 79,363 86 463 3 e
Land userights 10 12,740 13.069 = -
Investment in subsidianss 1 = - 8427 8,588
Intangible assats 12 1,089 17 = =
Other investments 13 996 996 - =
Deferred expenditure 14 429 - ~ -
Prepayments 18 1,413 BES = =
Deferred tax assels 15 728 arT - -
96,758 101585 8430 8,584
Current assets o !
Caontract work-if-progress 16 30,057 - - . -
Inventories 17 26,708 23,213 - -
Trade and other recelvables 18 153,509 104 406 250 238
Prepayments 19 3,321 831 12 14
~ Cash and bank balances 20 15,634 14,710 114 304 -
229229 143,360 376 556
Current liabilities ,
Trade and ather payables T 123,373 84058 7,883 7.707
Other liabilities 23 / 253 242 - -
Loans and borrowings 24 80 668 80 083 11,766 7403
Tax payable 8,537 2210 - -
| 222829 166 553 19,449 15,110
Met current assetsi|liabilities) 6,400 (23,233) (19,073) (14,554)
Mon-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 15 2,817 2,315 - -
g {2,817} _ (2.315) = 3
Met assetsi{liabilities) 100,341 T8.037 {10,843) (5,960)
] T T
Equity atiributable to swners of v
the Company
Share capital 25 113,179 113,179 113,179 113,179
Restricted reserves 26 7532 7475 - -
Foreign currency transiation ;
resere 27 211 1,640 910 831
Accumulated lossas 28 {78.373) {101 6948) {124 732) (119,770)
\ v 44,449 20,596+ (10,643) i5,960) "
Nun-r.'nn!rnllhly interests 55,892 55 441 - -
Total equity/{deficit) 100,341 76.037 |, {10,843) {5,980)

The accompenying accounting palicies and, explanatory notes form an infegral part of the

financial stalements,

Green Bulld Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Consclidated statement of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

ATITRHIFAES 16 ST 5 I C OMBanY

Furei
4 Enterpriss w‘pﬁ Ao (B
y Share  Readrve espamion Capital ~ iranslabon  lsed ontrading

e capital  funds funds  reseryes  reserve fomaws  Bubedotal  interests  Total snuity

AT RMEDCO WO CRMETHD | RMETDN | AMEDO0  RMENGG0  RMEDSD RMATO)
& i
ol 1 Jarwary 3014 HaE DR AR, aAmE 1640 (101,65 A58 53441 6037
i o thvm - - - - - iam  fam 8017 B30
:mnrwrndmmzm —_— -
Famgn cinmmy imestston = - - - an - m - L
O comprEheniae noome kr 1 year
netof isx 3 an = Ll - i
Tolal comprahantses iscom fof Tin
il o Rix - m nm  Eem B mEm
Transtam - a7 = & g . -
Total sontrinbom by sl darbuts 1 mesers .
Diwdents paid by sidssifiariar - - - - - - . .-.1| Il ...
Ay o 31 December 2014 13,1 3075 143 1018 11 Ry a4 L 4 100,341

| | |

my
e o Toarnnry 2073 114,77 1MB ¥ -] 1014 [T R ] oM A LT
ol i e s | - - - - E T m 5A37 587
M i e
Funsge ey Faialibn - = - = il - T = T
{her compreimensnes moome o e,
ot of L L - - - 5 il - i) - TR
Tolal poenprahanss nLom i he yeg,
neé ol bnx - - - - o b 1863 5137 o
Tolaluprirtubens by wid diibios 0 mesers
Tncedsely praal by nudbderses = = o = L TR P AT
As u 31 Docember 1013 A PEERIL) 101R 4% a1l Lhan (I0TEEE)  Jo5E ESad) Femr

/

The accompanying eccounting policies and explanatary notes form an integral part of the financial
statements,

&



Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of cash flow
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

+' Cash flows from operating activities

{In Chinese Renminbi)

Hote a4 013
RME OO0 AMBEDDO

Profil bebore tax 38,535 B,575
Adjustmants for ! {
Degreciation of proparty, plant and equpmant ] 11382 11,504
Amartisabion of intangible sssete 12 § 11}
Amartisabon of land usa rights 10 320 355
Amarlisation of defermed expendituire 14 L -
{Gain)Loss on dposal of property, plant and equipment (18) 141
\irite-back for imventories obsolescence 17 518} (B4)
Allowance for rade receivables 18 103 133
interest expanse 5240 4,401
interest income (175} (194)
Exchange differences an o]
Oparating profit before changes inworking caplial 83,385 25,440
(Increass)decrease in
Dederred sxpenditure 202y -
Confrac) work-in-progress | (30.057) -
Inventories > £ @5d) ! 4,243
Trade and otfier receivabies [48.528) {22,082)
Prapayments (3,740} 548
Increase n
Trade and ather payabiss ar.as 2447
Othar liabiites g i ]
Cash generated from operations 5,052 10,851
Inlerest paid (5,240 {4.401)
Interest income received 175 154
Income tax paid \ . 3 [1,658) {5.974)
Het cash (wsed Injigenerated from operating activities 1671] ;1270
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equigment ] (2419) 15.358)
Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment 43 BS5S
Purchase of intangibie assets 12 (53 -
et cash nflow on acquisition of subsidaries 1" T =
Proceeds from sale of investmenis . - s
Het cash used |n investing activities (3.304) 14.188)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paki by subsidisnkes o minonty shareholders _  [4.586) {12.176)
Regayment of inante lsase bhligations 4 [a4) (54}
Proceeds from bank bomowings 179,560 178,980
Repayment of bank borrawings {173, 3a0) (257 400)
Loan from corporate sharehoider ! 2204 | -
Loan from hakding chenpany 3 213 -
Lioan from a relsted party = 4,488
Degosits pledged for bills payatiss 4,182 {5.484)
Increase in amount due from holding company, non-trade (18] -
Increase m amount due ram comporate sharehokler, non-rads 51) (25)
Increase @ amount dus bo & drecior " 2287 -
Decrease in amaunt due 1o relsled parbes, non-trade [3,245) 12,081}
et cash generated from/{used in) inancing activites e 15,732)
"' Met decrease in cash and cash equivaiénts 3.258) 18.680)
Cash and tash equivalents at beginning of the year: 0,248 £ 178908
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20 5,888 B.246

The accompanying accounfing paoficies am" explanatory notes form an infegral part of the
financial staterments.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

1.

21

Corporate Infpma‘linn_ X : \

Green Build Technology Limited {the "Company”) was incorporated on/6 February 2004 and

is domiciled in Singapore under the Companies Act, Cap. 50 as a private company limited by

shares under the name "Youcan Foods Intemational Ple. Lid." On & Oclober 2004, the

Company converted to g public limited company and changed its name to YYoucan Foods

International Limited”, The Company is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading

Limited. The name was changed from "Youcan Foods International Limited” 1o "Youyue

Intemational Limited” with effect from 2 August 2012 and was further changed fo its current

name with effect from 3 October 2014, The immediate holding company is City Green Build

Technology Pte Lid and the ultimate holding company_ is Harbin Dali Aluminium. Doors &
Window Products Co., Ltd.

. The registered office and principal place of business of the Company i Iocated at & Temasek

Boulevard, #27-04 Suntee Tower Four, Singapore 038986

The principal activity of the Company is those of investment holding. The principal activities.
of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

During the year, the. Group acquired 100% shareholdings in two new subsidiaries to provide

alternative revenue streams lo the Group. These subsitiaries’ principal activities are in thnse
of provision of green technology activities and sustainable developments.

Summary of significant accounting policies

' Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Cor]'_many
have been prepared in agcordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS").

The financial statements hawe been prepared-on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed -
in the accounting policies below,

| ]
The ﬁﬂal‘l[}iﬂ' statements of the Group and the Company are presented in Chinese Renminbl
("RMB") and all values are rounded fo the nearest thousand ('000) except when otherwise
indicated

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's cash flow from operating activities is a net
outflow of RMB 671,000. As at 31 December 2014, the Company's current liabifities
exceaded thelr cufrent assets by RMB 19 million, and the Company has a net equity deficit of
RMB 11 milliorl. These factors indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may tast

, significant doubt about the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as going concems.



Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi}

2.1

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Basis of preparation [cont'd)
The financial statements havp been prepared on the basis that the Group and the Company
will continue &8s going concems based on the following:

(a) as disciosed in Note 21, the ultimate holding company has given an underlaking to
pravide financial supportdo the Group and Company o enable them to pay the amounts
due 1o a related party of a corporate shareholder should the amounts be recalled;

(b} the Group is reliant an loan facilities and it believes it has good working relationships with
| its principal bankers in the People's Republic of China and that it will be able to obtain
re-financing and/or additional loans. from the bankers whan required; and

{c) ability of the Group to generate positive cash flows from ils operations and the Company
to raceive funding from its subsidiaries.

If the Group and the Campany are unabla o continue in cperational existence for the

foreseaable fulure \the Group and the Company may ba unable 1o discharge their liabilities |

in the marmal course of business and adjusiments may have o be made to reflect the
situation that assets may need lo be realised other than |n the normal course of business and
al amounis which could differ significantly from the amounts al which they are currently
recorded in the Group’s and Company's balance sheeis as at 31 December 2014. In
addition; the Group and the Company may have fo reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assats and llabilities respectively. No such adjustments have been mada
to these financial statemants, .

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopled arg consistent with those of the previgus financial year
excepl in-the current financial year, the Group has adopled all the new and revised
standards which are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, The adoption of these standards did not have any effect on the financial performance
or position of the Group and the Company

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

MNotes to the financlal statements
For tha financial year anded 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Ranminbi)

\ A
Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2,
23 Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards that have been issued but not yet
affectiva:
Effective for annual
i periods beginning
Description on or after
Amendments to FRS 18 Defined Benefit Plans: Employes 1.July 2014
Contributions
Improvements o FRSs (danuary 2014} |
{a) Amandments to FRS 102 Share Based Payment 1-duly 2014
(b} Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2014
(c) Amendments ta FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 July 2014
(d) Amendments to ERS 16 Propery, Plant and Equipment and 1 July 2014
FRS 38 Intangible Assets
(e) Amendments to FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014
Improvemants to FRSs (February 2014 \ \
() Amendments to FRS 103 Business Cambinations 1 July 2014
(b) Amendments 1o FRS 113 Fair Valué Measurement 1 July 2014
Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38: Clarification of Acceptable 1 January 2016

@)

(b}
(€)
(d)

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Meathods of Depreciation and Amortisation
Improvemeants to FRSs (November 2014)

Amendments to FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale.
and Discontinued Operaticns

1 January 2016

Amendmants te FRS 107 Financial Instruments; Disclosures 1 January 2016.
Amendments to FRS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2016
Amendments to FRS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2016

1 January 2016

FRE 108 Financial Instruments |1 January 2016

With the exception of FRS 115, the diractors expect that the adoption of the other standards above
will have no matarial impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application:

FRS 115 was issued in November 2014 and esiablishas a naw fiva-step model that will apply lo
revenue arising from contracis with customers. Under FRS 115, revenue ks recognised at an amount

that

reflects the censideration fo which an entity expects to be entitied in'exchange for transferring

goods or services 1o a customer. The principles in FRS 115 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognising revenue, The hew revenue standard is applicable 10 all entibes and will
supersede all current revenue recognifion reguirements under FRS. Either a full or modified
refrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with
early adoplion permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of FRS 115 and plans fo
adopt the new standard on the required effective date
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) | \

2.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group's consolidsted financial stztemants reguires menagemant 1o
maks judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenuss,
expenses, assets and [iabiiities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each
reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amaunt of the asset or liability affected in the
future periods.

(2) Key saurces of estimation uncertainty

The key sssumptions concemning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period are discussed below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions abaut future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

(i) Depraciation of property, plant and equipment
The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis cver
their useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of the building to be 20
years, plant and machinery to be 10 years, and other assets to be 3 to 5 years or over
the lease term,

These are common life expectancies applied in this industry for these typesof asseis
and the carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and egquipment at 31
December 2014 was RMB 78,363,000 (2013; RMB 85,463,000).. Changes in the
expected ievel of usage and technological developments could impact the sconomic
ussful lives. and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised, =

, (i) Impairment of loans and recejvables
The Group sssesses at the end of each reporting period whether there.is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is
objective evidence 'of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the deblor and default or
significant delay in payments.

Whera thers ¢ abjeclive evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of futurs
cash flows are estimated based on historical losk experience for assels with similar
credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group's leans and receivables
at the end of the reporiing periad is disclosed in Mote 18 to the financial statemants.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) \
2.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont'd)

(a) Key sources of as'amanm uncertainty (contd)

‘(i) Allowance for inventory obsolescence

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based on an assessment
of the realisability of imdentories. Writs-downs on inventories are recorded where
evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimate.
Whare the-expectation |s different frém the original estimate, such differénce. will
impact the carrying value of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the years
in which-such estimate;has been changed. The carrying amount of the Group's
inventorles as at 31 December 2014 was RMB 26,708,000 (2013, RMB
23,313,000).

(ivy Deferred tax assets )
Defarred lax assels are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it ks

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
ulilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits tegether with future tax planning stralegies

The Group and the Company has tax losses camied forward of approximately RMB
20,501,000 {2013; RME 25,074,000), The Company and its subsidiaries have no
temporary taxable diffierences which could parily support the recognition of deferred
tax assets. Alsp, there is no tax planning opporunity available that would further
provide 8 basis for recognition. If the Group was able o recogniss all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, the net profit for the year would increase by approximately
RME 3,485,000 (2013: RME 4,263.000).

(v) Contract revenue recognition
The Group recognises gontract revenue by reference to the stage of complation of
the contract activity at the end of each reporting period, whan the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, The stage of completion is
measured by reference o the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
parformed lo date o the estimated lotal contract costs, Significant assumptions are
required o estimate the lotal contract costs and the recoverable varation works
that affeci the stage of completion, In making these estimates, management has
feliad,l on past experience and knowisdqa of the praject sn-gm-eers.' Revan!.is
amount recognised |s determined by the markei-price of the related completed
installation. Current year révenue relaled 1o the provision of green lechnoiogy
amount to RMB 29,683,000

The carmying amount of contract  work-in-progress arnsing from construction
contracts al the end of the reporling pericd is disclosed in MNote 16 to the financial
statements. If the estimated folal confrect cost had been 5% higher than
management estimate, the carmying amount of the assets ansing from construction
contrects would have been approximately RMB 1,412,000 (2013: RMB Nil) lower,
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) |

Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont'd)

(b), Judgements made in applying accounting policies

i)

]

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following juedgements which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consalidated financial statemenis:

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenua on ts products sold-subject to product relurns by its
customers.  Customers include third partes and a related party. If there arée any signifi-
cant subsequent product retums, this would have an implication on prafit or loss.

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in two jurisdictions, namely the Pecple’s Re-

public of Chifa and Singapore. Significant judgement is involved in determining the

Group-wide provtsmn for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations
Aar which the ultimate tax determingtion is uncertain during the ordinary gourse of busi-
ness. The Group recognises Fabiliies for expected tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due; Where the final tax outcome of thesa matiers is dif-
ferent from the amounts that wers ‘initially recognised, such differences will impact the
income fax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
The camying amount of the Group's deferred tax liabilifies and tax payable as at 31 De-
cember 2014, was RMB 2,817,000 and RMB 8,537,000 réspectively (2013; RMB.
2,315,000 and RMB 2,210,000 respectively),
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25 Functional and foreign currancy

Furictional currancy

The managemant has determinad the currencies of the prmary economic environmant in
which the subsidiaries of the Group and the Company oparate Le. funclional currencies, 1o be
RMEB and SGD respectively. Sales prices and major costs of providing goods and servicas in-
cluding major operating expenses for the subsidiaries of the Group and Company are pnmarl-
Iy Influenced by fluctuations in RMB and SGD respectively,

{a} Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective funclional curmencies of
the Company and iis subsidianes and are recordad on initial recognition in the functional
currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates, Mone-
tary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing
rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reparting period, Non-monstary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in-a foreign curmency are translated using the ex-
change rales as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary ilems measured at
fair value In a foreign currency ‘are translated using the exchange ratas at the date whan
the fair value was measured.

Exchange differencas arising on the settlement of manetary items or on translating mone-
tary ltems at the end of the reporling period are recognised in profil or loss.

{b) Consolidated financial statemants

The financial statemants of the Om‘lparn' are lranslsted Intg RMEB which is the presanta 2

tion currency of the Group.

The results and financial poaﬁion of the Company is translated into RMB using the follow-
ng procedures:

+ Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at th&dosnng ex-
change rate ruling &t the end of the reporting period; and

+ Income and expensas for tha statement of comprehensive income are ranslated at av-
arage exchange rates for the year, which appraximates the exchange rates at the dates
af the transactions.

All resulting exchange differences are recognised In othar comprehansive inoome. On
dispasal of a foreign aperation, the component of ather comprehensive mcomea relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or |oss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) |

2.6 Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation

{a) - Bubsidiaries
A subsidiary is an investee that is conirelled by the Group. The Group conirols an invest-
ee when it is exposed, or has rights. to variable refums from its involvement with the in-
vestee and has the atality to affect those returns through its power over ihe investee,

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are account-
ed for at cos! less impairment losses.

{b} Basisof consolidation
The consofidated financial stalements mmﬁﬁs& the financial statemants of the G;:mpany

and |15 subsidianes as-al the end of the reporting perdod. The financlal statements of the
subeldlanies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements ana prapared

for the same reporting date as tha holding company - Consistent accounting policies are

applied to ke transactions and events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group halances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting |

from intra-group transaciions and dmdenﬁs are eliminated in full

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
‘ceases,

Losses within 8 subsidiary are attributed io the non-controlling inferest even if that results
in & deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an squTl‘)- transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

|  — De-recogrises the assets (Including goodwill) and liabilites of the subsidiary at

1fieir carrying amounts at the date when cantrols is lost;

— De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-conirolling interest;

— De-recognises the cumulative transiation differences recorded in equity;

— Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

—  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

— Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

- R&d&s'sif{ea the Group's share of components previousiy recognised in other com-
prehensive incometo profit or loss or retained earnings, 8s appropriate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) : \
26 Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation {cont'd)

{c} Business combinations and goodwill

Any cortingent consideration fo be fransferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date, Subseguent changss 1o the fair value of the confingent
cansideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in profit or
lass.

The Group elects for each individual busipass combinafion, whether non-conirolling in-
ferest in the acquiree (if any), that are present awnership interests and entitle their Aold-
ers to & proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation, is recognised on
the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-contrafiing intarest's proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable nat assets, Other companents of non-controlling interests
are measured al their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by another FRS.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combination, the amount af non-controlling interest in the acquires (i any), and the fair

valua of the Group's praviously hald equity intesest in the acquires (if any), over the net
fair valua bf the acquirea's |dentiflable assels and labilities is racorded as goodwill.
accounting policy for goodwill is sel oul I Note 2.10(a). In m:arangas whare the lalter
amount excaeds the former, the excess rs recognised as gain on bargain purchase in
profit or loss on the acquisition date,

Goodwill is initially measured al cast. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cosl less any accumulated impalrmant lossas.

For the purposa of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
fram the acquisition-date, allocaled o the Group's cash-generating units that are ex-
pscta-d to banafit from the synargies of the combination, irmespective of whather other

assals or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned lo those units. =

The cash-ganerating units 1o which goodwill have been allocatad is tested for impair-
ment annually and whenever thera is an indication thal the cash-genarating unit may be
Impaired. Impairment is determinad for goodwill by assessing the recoverabla amount
of each cash-genarating unit {or group of eash-genarating units) to which the goadwill
relates.

27 Transactions with non-caontrolling Interests

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not atiributable, directly or indi-
recily, to owners of the Company,

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in & subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control @re accounted for as equity transactions. 'In such crcumstances, the carying
amounts of the controlling and non-cantrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any differance between the amount by which the
nan-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or recaived is
recognised directly in equity and atlributed 1o owners of the Company.
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Summary of significant accounting pelicies (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Al items of property, plant and eguipment are initially recorded at cosl, Subsequent to recagni-
tion; praperty, piant and equipment other than freehold land and buildings are measured at cost
less accumulated depraciation and any accumulated impairment losses, Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and bormowing costs that are di-
ractly atiributable to the acquisition, construction and preduction of a qualilying property, plant
and eguipment. The accounting palicy for borrowing costs is setoutin Note 2,18, The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipmeant is recognised as an asset if, and only If, it is probable
that future ecoromic benefits associated with the iterm will flow to the Group and the cost of the
ltlem can be measured raliably. Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Building - 20 years

Plant and machinzry - 10 years

Motar vehicles ) ‘ - 5 years

Offica equipment - 3to S years

Office renavation - over the lease tarm

Assets under construction included in property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as
these assets are not yel available for use,

The camying values of praperty, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events.
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-and, and ad]l.nsheld praspectively, if appropriate.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future eco-
nomic benefits are expectad from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on tiea'ecogﬂmon
of the asset is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised,

Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition. land use rights are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment lossas. The
land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis overthe lease tarm of 50 years
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) \

Intangible assats

Intangible. assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost, Following initial ac-
quisition, intangible assals ame carried at cost less any accumulatad amortsation apd any
accumulated impalrment losses. Internally ganerated intangible assels, excluding capital-
Isad development costs, ama nol capitalised and expandilura |s reflacted in profit or loss in
the year in which the axpanditure is Incurred,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessad as elther finite or indefinita.

Intangible assets with finite usaful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lves and
assessed for impairment whengver there ks an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amonisation method are reviewed at least al
each financial year-end. Changes in the expecl.ed useful life or the expected partern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amoartisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates

Intangible asssts with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for im-
pairment annually, or mare frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the
carmying valug may be impaired gither individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Such intangible-assets are not amortised. The useful lifz of an intangible assel with an in-
definite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessmant
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospactive basis.

Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the

differanca betwean the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
ana racognisad In profit or loss when the assel s derecognised.

(&) Goodwill
Goodwill was acquired in business combinations. The useful life of goodwill is esti-
mated to be indefinite because management believes there is na foreseeable limil o
the period over which goodwill is expected to generate net cash inflow far the Group,
(b) Saftware

Software'which relate to purchese of computer sofiware is capitalised and amortisad
on a straight-line basis over 3 to 5 years.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Deferred expenditure

Deferred axpenditure ere recorded at cost lass any accumulated amortisation. The defermed
expenditure is amortised over the energy saving period of T years as provided for in the enargy
management contracts as agreed with the customers

The carrying values of deferrad expenditure are reviewed from impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Impairment of non-financial assats
The Group assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be

impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual impairmen testing for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the assel’s recoverable amount.

An assel's recoverabla amount &5 the higher of an asset's-or cash-generating unit's fair value -

hess costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
assel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets

or groups of assets. Whera the carmying amount of an assel or cash-generating unit exceeds its |

recoverable amount, the assat is mnsnderad impaired and is written down to its recowerable
amount.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss, except for assets
that are previously revalued where the revalugtion was taken to other comprehensive income,
In this cass, the impairmeant is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the
amount of any previous revaluation, ;

A previously recognised impairment loss is.reversed only if there has been a change in the esti-
mates used lo delarmine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised; If that is the casa, the carrying amount of the asset is increasad to its recoverablé
amount. That increase cannat axcead Ihe carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depraciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Sukh reversal is reo-
ognised in profit or loss unless the assel is measured at revalued amount, in which case the ra-
varsal s treated as a revaluation increase.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) }
Financial assats

Inifial recognition and n'.leasuranm

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
confractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification

of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of findncial assets not at fair value through' profit or loss, directly atirbutable trafisac-
lion costs,

Suﬂ-sequam' measurament

The subsagquent measurement of financlal assels depends on their class(fication as follows:

(a) Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted inan active market are classified as |Fans and recaivables. Subsequent to -
tial recagnition, loans and regalvables are measured at amortised cost using the effec-
live interast mathod, less Im'palrmant. Gains and lossas are mmghisad in profit or loss
whaen the loans and receivables are derecognised or impairad, and through the amaor-
tisation process.

{b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assels include equity-and debt securities, Equity inmvest-
ments classified as available-for sale are those, which are neither classified as held for

trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this cate- -

gory are these which are intended 1o be held for an indefinite penod of time and which
may be soldin response g needs for liquidity or in response to changes in lhe market
“conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial asset are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment losses, foreign ex-
change gains and losses on monatary instruments and interest calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equl‘qr o

profitor lossas a I‘ﬂt’EﬁElfh‘.‘._ﬁl‘hﬂn adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised.

imvestments in equily instrurments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
maasurad al cosl less impairment loss;
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd),
Financial assets (cont'd)
Da-recognilion

A financial assel & de-recognised where the contractual right 1o recalve cash flows from tha
assal has expired. On de-recognition of a financial assel In its antisaty, the difference be-
ween the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recalved and any cumulative
gain or loss that had baen recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss.

'Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank balances that are readily con-
vertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in valug. -

Cash and cash eguivalents carried in the balance sheets are classified and accounted for

as [nans and receivables under FRS 38. The accounting policy for this category of financial |

assets is stated in Mote 2.13.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, incliding amounts due from corporate shareholder, subsidiar-
les and relaled parties are classified and accountad for as loans and receivables under FRS
39, Tha accounting policy for this category of financial assetls is stated in Nots 2.13.

An allowance is mada for uncollectible amounts when thera is cbjective evidance thal the
Group will not b able to coliect the debt. Bad dabts are writtan-off when identified. Funher
datails on the accounting policy for impaliment of financlal assets are stated in Note 2,16
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cant'd) 1
Impairment of financial assets '

The Group sssesses at sach reporting date whisther there is any obiective evidenca that
a financial asset is impaired.

(8) Financial assets carrled af amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whather abjec-
tive evidence of Impalrmaent axists individually for financial assets that are Individually

significant, or coltectively for financial assets that are not Individually significant. If the
Group detarmines that no objective evidence of Impairment exists for an indwlduaﬂy as-
sessed financial assaet, whather significant or not, it includes the assst in a group of fi-
nancial assets with simillar credit risk characteristics and colracﬁu"ely assesses them for
Iimpaimment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an im-
pairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are nol included in 8 collective assess-
meant of impairment,

If thera is objective evidenca that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amor-
tised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss Is measured as the difference be-
tween the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated fulure cash Tigws
discounted at the financial asset's original effective inlerest rate. If a foan has a variable
Interesi rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allow-
ance account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

' When the assat baoqmes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets
Is reduced directly or If an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts
charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the finan-
cial asset,

To delermine whether there is objective evidence that an impaimment loss on financial -

assets has been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the probability of insal-
vency or significant financigl difficulties of the debtor and defauli or significant delay in
paymenis. " "

If in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the de-
crease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was rec-
ognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the car-
rying amaunt of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The
amaunt of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

{b) Financial assets carried af cost

If there is objeclive evidence njauch as significant adverse changes in the business anvi-
ranment whare tha issuer aperates, probabdity of insolvency or significant financial diffi-
culthes of the issuar) that an impairment loss on financial assels carried at cost has bean
Incurred, the amaunt of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's car-
rying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at tha cur-
rent market rate of return for a similar financlal asset. Such impalrment losses are not re-
versed In subsequent periods.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)’
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

{c), Available-for-sale financial assets

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of im-
pairment Include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, (i) information
about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technologi-
cal, market, econcmic or'tegal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates
that the cost of the investment in equity instrument may not be recovered; and (iil) & signif-
icant or prolorged décline in the fair value of the investment below its costs.

| |7 an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amorisation) andits cur-
rent fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is trans-
ferred from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss, Reversals of im-
pairment losses in respect of equity instruments are not recognised in profil or loss, in-

crease in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive

inGoma.

In the case of debt instrumenis classified as avallathar sale, impairment ks assessed |

based on the same critera as financial assets camled al ambriised cosl. However, the
-amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference be-
tweean tha amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairmeant loss on that in-
vestmant préviously recognised In profit or loss. Fulura interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, wsing the rate of intarest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impalrment loss,
The interest Income |s recorded as par of finance income. If; In a subseqguent yvear, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increases can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was rs'cogrﬁsatl in-profit or loss, the impair-
ment loss is reversed in profit or loss.

Contract revenue and contract costs

The Group principaily operates fixed price contracts, Contract revenue and contract casts
are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of com-
pletion of the contract activity at the end of the reparting periad (the percentage of comple-
ticn method), when the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,

The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably whern:

(i) total contract revente can be measured ralianlyi
{iiy Mtis prabable that the economic benefils associated with the cantract will flow to the
antity;
{iii} the tosts fo complete the contract and the stage of completion can be measured rell-
abily;
{iv) the contract cosls atributable to the contract can be cleary dantified and measured
rediably so that achual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates,
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) \

Contract revenue and contract costs (cont'd)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be astimated reliably (principally
during early stages of a contract), contract révenue is recognised only to the extent of con-
tract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable and contract costs are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

An expected loss on the construction contract is recognised as an expense immediately
when it is probabie that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

In applying the percentage of completion method, revenue recognised comesponds o the
total contract revenue multiplied by the actual completion rate based on the proportion of
total contract costs incurred io date and the estimated costs to complete,

Confract revenue

Contract revanue commesponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and
any varations in contract wark, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is proba-
bie that they will result in revenue; and they are capable of being reliably measured.

|

Coniract cosis

Contract costs inclode costs that relate direcily to the specific.coniract and costs that are at-
iributable to contract activily In general and can be allocated to the confract. Cosls that
relate direcily to a specific contract comprise: site labour costs (including site supervision);
costs of materials used in construction: depreciation of eguipment used on the contract;
oosts of design, and technical asslstance that is directly refated to the contract.

The Group's confracts are typically negotiated for the canstruction of a single asset or a
group of assets which are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design,
technology and function. In certain circumstances, the percentage of completion method is
applied to the separately identifiable components of a single contract or to a group of con-
h'act; tegether in order to refiest the substance of a contract or a group of ount[acts.

Assets covered by a single contract are treated separately when:

Separate proposals have been submitted for each asset

- Each gsset has been subject to separate negotiation and the contractor and customer
have been able to accept or reject that part of the contract relating to each asset

- The costs and revenues of sach asset can be identified \

A group of contracts are treated as a single construction contract wheni:

- The group of contracts are negotlisted as a single package: the contracts are so closaly
intetralated thal they are, in effect, part of a single project with an overall profit margin
The contracts are performed concurrently or in @ continuous Sequence
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2.18

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)’
Inventories

Inventories are stated al the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs incurred in bringing
tha inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

- Raw materials — purchase costs on a first-in, first-out basis,
* Work-in-progress and - costs of direct materials and labour and a propostion of
finished goods manufactuning overheads based on nomal operating
capacity. These cost are @ssigned on a first-in, first-out
basis

'Iu'\'hara necessary, allowance is pfm;idad for damaged, obsolele and simlar maving items 1o
adjust the camying value of inventones to the lower of cost-and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimaled selling prica in the ordinary course of business, lEss. estl—
mated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sate,

Borrowing costs | v
Borrowing costs are capitalised as part.of the cost of a qualifying asset i they are directly al-
tributable fo the acquisition, construction or production of that asset, Capitalisation of borrow-
ing costs commences when the activities to prepare the assel for its intended use or sale are
in progress and the expendiiures and bormowing costs are incurred. Bormowing costs are capi-
talised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. Al other
borrowing costs are expensad in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrawing of funds.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measursmeni

Financial liabilities are recognised whan, and anly when, the Group becomes a party to the
confractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of
its financial iabiities at initial recognition.

Al financial liabillties are recognised initially at fair value pius in the case of financial liabilites
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsaquent measurement

After Initial recognition, financial kabilities that are not carred at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when ihe liabiliies are derecognised, and through the
amoriisation process.
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2.20 Financial liabilities {cont'd)

De-racognition

& financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability |s discharged or
cancelled or expires, Whan an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lendef on substantially differant tarms, or the terms of an existing liability are substan-
tialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the origi-
nal liabiity and the recognition of a new liabllity, and the-differenca’in the respaciive carrying
amounts Is recognised in profit or loss.

All Izans and borrowings are initially recognised al the fair value of the consideration re-
ceived less directly atfributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-beanng loans and bormowings are subsequenily rmﬂauied
at amortised tost using the effective interest mathod.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liatslites are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred, except when they are directly attribut-
able to the acquisiion, construction or production of a qualifying asset (Note 2.19).

2.22 Provisions

Provislons are recognisad when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a rasult of a past event, |t is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic
banafits will ba reguired o saltle the obligation and the amount of the cbligation-can be esti-
matad refiably.

Provisions are reviewed al the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the cur-
rent best estimate, If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will ba
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the fime value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a cument pre-tax rate that reflacts,
where appmbriat&. the risks specific to the hiability, When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of fime is recognised as a finance cost,
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2. Summary of significant accounting pelicies (cont'd), \

223 Employes benefits

() Defined contribution plans

(b)

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by tha laws of tha
cauntmes in which it has operations, In particular, the Company makes contributions ta the
Central Providant Fund schema in Slngapore, a defined contribution pension schema.
Contributions to natlonal pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the perod'in
which the related service is performed.

Employes leave eatitisment

Employee antitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue lo
empidyees. The undiscounted liability fdr leave expected to be seftled wholly before
welve months after the end of the reporting period Is recognised for services rendered by
empioyees up fo the end of the reporting period

Employes share option schame

Employees (including senior execulives) of the Group recelve remuneration in the formof
share-based payment ;ransacﬂuns. whereby employees render services as consideration
for share options ('equity-settled transactions’)

Equity-setlied ransactions

The cost of equity-settied transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date on which the share opfions are granfed which takes inlo account market
conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settied transactions Is recognised in profit or loss, together with a corre-
sponding increase in the employee share option reserve, over the vesting perod. Tha cu-
mulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until
the vesting date refiects the extent to which the westing period has expired and the Group's.
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in curnUIaln-\e EXPENSE rec-
ugn‘lssd as atthe beginning and end of that period,

Mo expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, excepl for awards where
vesling is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are trealed as vested
imespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other parformance and/or similar conditions ara satisfied. In the case where the oplion
does not vest as the resull of a failure to meel a non-vesting condition that is within the
cantral of the Group or the employee, It is accountad for as'a cancellation, In such case)
the amount of the compansation cgst that otherwise would be recognised over the remain-
dar of the vasting period Is recognised immediately in profit or loss upon canceflation. The
employea share option resarve is transferred o retained earnings upon axpiry of the share
options. \When tha oplions are axercised, the employes share option resenve is transfermed
1o share capital if new sharas are issued, of to treasury shares if the options ara satisfied
by the relssuanca of treasury sharnes.

The Group did nol grant any empioyasa share options as at 31 December 2014,
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.24 Leases
{a) Aslosses

Finance leases, which transfer io the Group substantially all the risks and rewards inci-
dental to awnership of the leased item, &ra capilalised at the inception of the lease at the
fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the'minimum lease pay-
ments, Any initial direct costs are alsp added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the Temaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged o profit or loss, Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Capltalised leased assels are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated vselul lile of
tha asset and the laase term, if thera s no reasonable cerainty that the Group will obiain
ownarship by the end of the |ease term.

Crperating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or lossona slra_lght-llna
basis over the lease tarm, The aggragate bepefit of ir_lcanﬁuas provided by the lessor is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease lerm on a straight-line basis.

As lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of the
assel are classified as operating leases, [nitial direct costs incurred In negotiating an op-

eraling lease are added to the carrying amount of the |eased azset and recognised over
the lease term on the same bases as rental income. The accounting policy for rental
income is 2at out in Note 2.25(e). Contingent rents are recognised as revenua In the
period in which they are eamed.
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2.25

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd),

Revenue recognition

Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to

the

Group and the revenue. can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is

made. Revenue |s measured at the falr value of consideration received or recelvable, taking
Into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

(a)

(b}

Sale of goods-

Revenue I'rﬂrﬁ sale of goods is recognised upon il':le transfer of significant risk and re-
wards of ownership of the goods to the customer, usually on daliwryofgwds. Revenua
is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncerainties regarding recoy-
ery of the consideration due, assaciated costs or the possible return of goods.

Confratl revenus

Revenue from the provision of green tachnology servicas and construction of ralated in-

slallation is recognisad by refarenca to the stage of completion at the and of tha reporting

period. Details bf the actounting policy are disclosad In Note 217

Interast income

(c)

(d)

(a)

Interest income s recognised using the effective interest mathod.

Dividend fncome

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Rental incorme - -

Rental income is accounted for op a straight-ine basis over the lease terms. The aggre-

.gate costs of incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of rental

income over the lease term on & straight- line basis
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221

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) )

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Whers the grants relates to
an expense item, it Is recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate, Where the grant re-
lates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheat
&nd is emortised {o profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant assat by equal
annual instalments.

Taxes

(&) Current income tax

()

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are mea-
sured af the amount expected to be recoverad from or paid to the laxation authorties,
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacled or
subsiantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the couniries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income taxes arg recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to ilems recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
incarne or directly in equity. Manapement periodically evaluates positions taken in the
tan relurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax reguiations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Defermed tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the and
of the reporting period between the tax bases of assels and llabllities and their carry-
Ing amaunts for financial reparting purposes.

“Deferred tax liabilities are recognised forall temporary differences, except:

1 Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset.or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affecis neither Ihe accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss:

In respect of taxable tamporary differences associated with investmants in subsid-

- laries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be con-
trolled and it is probabla that the temporary differences will notreverse in the fore-
seeable future.



Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

[In Chinese Renminbi)

2. Summary of significant accounting policles (cont'd) |
227 Taxes (cont'd)

(b} Deferred tax {cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, camy for-
ward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, ta the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from

the initial recognition of an assat or liability in a transaction that is not a business combi-

! nation and, at the time of the uramactmn aﬁects neither the accounting profit nnrtﬁxable
profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiar-

ies, defered tax assets are recognised only to the exient that it is probable that the tem-

porary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxabie profit will be avail-
able against which the temporary differences can be utilisaed.

\ L1 | {1
The carrying amount of 'deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting

period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all cr part of the deferred tax asset to be ulilised, Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed al the end of each reporting period and are rec-
ognised to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax sssels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to

apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settied, based on tax rates
{and {ax laws) that have been enacted or substantivaly anacbed atthe end of sach rsparl
ing period. i

! Deferred tax relating to ilems recofnised oulside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying iransaction
either in other comprehensive incoma or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a
business combination s adjusted against goodwill on ar.qulsruan

(c)  Value added fax f"VA ™

Ravenues, expgnses and assets ara recognised net of the amount of VAT excepl:

= Where the VAT incurred on a pu!_'::l'lase of assets or services is noi recoverable from
the taxation authorily, in which case the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acqui-
sition of the asset or as par of the expense ltem as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) \

2.28 ' Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on
their products and services which are independently managed by the respective segment
managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments under their charge.
The segment managers report directly to the management of the Company wha regularly
review the segment resulls in order fo allocate resources to the segments and to assass
the segment parformance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments ara shown in
Note 31, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measure-
ment basis of segment information, £

229 Share capital and share issus expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recaognised as share capiial in equity. In-
cramental costs directly atiributable fo the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share pltal.

2.30  Contingencies

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arses from past events and whose existence will be con-
firmed only by the occurrence or non-occurmence of one or more uncertain future
avenis not wholly within the control of the Group; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

{i) - It iz not probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required fo settle the obligation; or

{ii} - The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient refiability.

A conlingent assel 15 'a possible asset that arises from past events and whose axkstence
will ba confirmad only by the occurrence or non-occumenca of one of More uncertain
future evants-not whally within tha control of tha Group. ]

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group,
excapt for contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obili-
gations and which the falr values can be refiably determined.
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3. Revenue
Group
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
Sale of goads 259 968 245418
Contract ravenua 28 683 -
289,651 245418
4. Cther operating income
Group
2014 2013
! ! RMB'000 RMB'000
Govermment grants 26453 BEO
Interest income from bank balances 175 194
Sale of raw materials and by-products 6334 5127
Operating lease incoms \- - 228
Others * 286 151

33,948 5,380

]

The government granis are mainly awarded by the local governments as par of the
green technology service projects qnderﬁakﬁn by the subsidigries,

*  Others mainly relate fo compensation inwma-from suppliars.
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Profit from operations.

Prafit from operations is arrved at after charging/{crediting) the following:

Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ fees
Ciher staff costs

Staff costs

Deprecistion of property, plant and eguipment
Amartisation of intangible assets
Amariisation of land use rights -
Amorisation of deferred expenditure
Allowance for trade receivables
[Gain)/L oss on disposal of plant and equipment
White-back for inveniory obsclescence
Opaerating lease expenses
Foraign exchanga loss, net
Audit fees paid 1o:

- auditors of the Company

- other audiiors !
Mon-awdit fees paid to:

- auditors of the Company

Staff costs

Salaries and bonus
Contributions fo dafined contribution plans

Group

Mote 2014 2013
RME'000 RME000
249 176
486 392
23,776 21,2095
& 2451 21,883
9 11,352 11,504
12 | i0
10 29 - 354
14 il -
18 103 139
(18) 141
17 (518) (4]
30(a) 96 288
555 1,832
34 279
920 480
Pl 24

Group

2014 2013
RMETO0 ' RME'00D
22 B6g 18,931

1,843 2832

21,883

2451
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1. Income tax

Note
Curren! income lax
-‘ourrent year incame taxation
- aver-provision in respect of poor year
Defamred income tax relating to ongination and reéversal
of tempararny-differences 15

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

A reconciliation between the lax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by

Group
2014 2013
RMBYOO - RMBYUOD

8112 3613
{27 {428)
151 (517)

8,136 2668

the applicable tax rates for |r_1e fingncial years ended 31 December was as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the eduntrias
concermead
Adjustmants:

Income nat subject to taxation

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposas
Deferred tax assét nol recognised in current year
Owver-provislon In respest of prior year

Ohhers

Income tax expense

{a} The Singapore corporate incoma tax rate applicable lo the Company is 17% (2013:

17%).

{6}  Thera is no income tax expanse for tha Company as the Company s an investment ™

hotding company and is in a tax loss position.

(&) The above reconciliation is prepared by aggm'gapng saparale reconciliations for each

national jurisdiction..

{d} Companies in the People’s Regublic of China ("PRC") are subject o FRC corparate
income tax ("CIT") rate of 25% (2013: 25%). Certain subsidiares in PRC enjoy

concessionary lax rates due lo tax incentive schemes,

Group

2014 2013
RMBODD  RMEDOO
26,535 | 8,675
8,531 2478
{1.671) =
152 254
0834 m
{r2m) (428)
183) (H7)
8,136 2,668
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8, Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share amounis are calculated by dividing the profit from continuing
operations atfributable o' owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ardinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit from operations
atfributable to ordinary cwners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year plus the weighted averags number of ordinary
shares thal would be issued on the conversion of all the dilulive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

The following lables reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of bask: and
dituted-earmings per share from operations fer the years ended 31 Decembar:

Group
2014 2013

RMBO00.  RME'000

Net profit from continuing operations attributabie o owners
of the Company for basic and fully diluted eamings per

\
share ) 23,382 70
Met profit altributable fo owners of the Company for basic
and fully diluled eamings par share 23,382 i
Ne. of shares
2014 2013
000 ooo

Weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue
applicable o basic sarmings per share 3 = 238,860 238860

Adjusied weighted average numbsear of ordinary shares }
. applicable to diluted earnings per share 238 860 238 860

Since the end of tha year, there are no options granted to acquire crdinary shares in tha
shara capital of the Company.

There have been no other lransactions involving ordinary shares or potantial ordinary
sharas since the reporting date and bafora the mmpjletlon of these financial stataments.

!

&
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A

Property, plant and er.liuipm:nl.'

Group

Caat
AL 1 Jariary 2013
Additions

Disposas
Mt axchangs difarances

AL Dacember 2013 &nd 1 January 2014
Addifiang

Disposaly

‘Winttan afl
Acquisition of subeianes (Nots 11)
Hed exchanps differences

|
A1 31 Dacembag 2014

Aczimuialed depraciation:
AL 1 January 2093
Charge for the year
Disposals

Mat ewchange differences

AL 31 December 3013 and 1 January 2014
Charge far the year
als L
‘Writhen afl '
et exchange diferences

At 31 Decomber 20114

Met carrying amount
A1 31 Oocombor 2014

At 31 Decamber 2043

Office
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Plant and  Motar ffice
inery ehicl equipment renavation  Tolal

RMBO00  RMBTOD | RMECIOC  RME'DO0  RMBTO0  RMBIC
48596 88512 3800 FT48 187 143833
176 4w 2 50 B 5358
- (Ea2y {13z - = [2152)
- - {30} ) - (33
49,872 88,480 3528 HEI5 W 147006
- 1004 - 74 188 1418
- = (800 - = [500)
t - 452y - = (£
- - 253 &an - BET
= = 7 - - T
9072, 2574 2832 4803 A48 _ 150,327
10228 2043 2260 F Ty [l Lt
2844 7875 473 380 2 11,504

- (1037} i) - - (1,188)
- - g0} il - 22
12487 41381 2504 3025 # aB543
2411 851 4 508 &7 11352
- = (4T = ] (AT
= = (a2 - - (462}
- - 7 i - [
15,203 50,132 1,668 3,533 148 70,984
MR8 42442 564 1,670 296 76,363
3000 47509 wid B0 200 6463

{In Chinese Renminbi)

\ 5 !
9. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) !
Office Motar
equipment  vehicles Total

RME'DOO RMB'0DD RMB'000
Company
(?ost'
AL 1 January 2013 50 485 535
Met exchange differences 3 (30) (33)
Al 31 Decémber 2013 and 1 January 2014 = AT 455 562
Wiritten off = {462) {482)
Metexchangs differences 5 (1) - . B
Al 31 December 2014 48 - 46

Accumulated depreciation:

ALY January 2013 a2 485 527
Charge for the year 2 - -

Nat exchange differences | B - L (30) (32) \
At 81 December 2013 and 1 January. 2074 a2 455 457
Charge for the year 2 - 7.
Written off - {462 (482)

Net exchange differences (1 i 6

At Decamber 2014 1 43 - 43

hNet camying amount;

At 31 Decamber 2014 3 = 3

At 31 December 2013 I & - 5

The cash putfow on the Group's acquisilion of proparty, plant and eguipment amounted o RMB
3,419,000 (2013: RMB 5,358,000).

As at'31 December 2014, the Group has nol obtained property certificates for plant and office
buildings, with a carrying amount of approximately RMEB 5,184,000 (2013: RMB 5.730,000)

Assels pledged as slﬂcm-ly
In addition to the asset held under a finance lease, the Group's property, plant and eqummsnt with
a canying amount of RMB39,195,000 (2013; RMB 44,982 000) are morigaged to secure the
Group's bank loans (Note 24).

14



Green Build Technolegy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statemants
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

10.  Land use rights
Group
2014 2013
RME'O00  RME'D0D

.Cas!.-
At 1 January and 31 December 15,043 15,043

Accumulated amortisation;

At danuary 1,874 1,619
|| ] ||
Amartisation for.the-yaar - 328/ 355
At 31 December 2,303 1,874
Nel carrying amaunt 12,740 13,!:_69

Amount to be amortised: ; .
- Not later than one year 328 229

- Later than one year bul not later than five years 1,318 1,316
- Later than five years 11,085 11,424
12,740 13,088

Az at 31 December 2014, the Group abtained property ceriificates for the properties with a carrying
amount of RMB 133, mn (2013: RMB 148,000) but has not oblained the related fand use ﬂghl
certificates.

The Group has land use rights over two plols of state-owned land inthe Peopla's Republic of China
{"PRC") where a eertain subsidiary’s manufacturing activities currently reside. The land use rights
represent prepaid land premiums and are transferable.

Tha remaining tenures of tha land use rights are as follows:

No, 88 Ding Cliao Zhen Eau Lu {*Piot 1")— 38 years (2013: 38 mrs}
Xin Cang Xiang Min Lian Chun ("Plot 2") — 35 years (2013: 36 years)

As atl 31 Dacamber 2014, the Group has not ablained land use certificates for Plot 2 which has a nat |

carrying amount of approximately RMB 1,519, 000 {2013: RMB 1,586,000).

The amortisation of lapd use rights i included In the administrative expanses lina Ilam In thee income
statement.

Assets pledged as security i )
The net camying amount of land use rights pledged as security for interest-bearing bank loans
granted fo the Group amounted o RME 11,211,000(2013: RMB 11, 4832,000) (Note 24).

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Naotes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

\
1. Invastment in subsidiaries

Unguated equity shanes, al cost
Exchange diiferences on franslation
Impalrment l0sses

Carrying value of investment

(a) Composition of the Group

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company Principal activities
(Country of incorporation) (place of business)

Held by the Commpany

M /WYW Capital Pte Lid Inwestment holding
{"WYW- Capital”) {Singaporne)
Singapore
2 ¥ourun Packaging Resaarch and
Tachnology (Hangahou) development on
Co., Ltd. packaging technology,
(*Hangzhou Yourun") packaging design and
People's Republic o, packaging lechnology
China cansultandcy
|Peocple’s Republic of
China} -
Held through WYW Caplral
12 Harbin Promlite Ensrgy Energy.consenvation
Saving Technaology Co., sarvices and installation
Lid, ("Harbin Promlita”} of green technology and
Peaple's Rﬂpub!lf.a! archileciure
China {Pecple's Republic of
China)

Company
201

2013
RMB'000

6714
(125}

8,588

Cost of investment

RMEDOO  RME00O

Percentage
of equity
held by the
Group
2014 2013
B %

100 100



Grean Build Tecﬁnnlogy Limnited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial staterments
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Green Build Technolegy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial yearended 31 December 2014

(In Chinese Renminbi)

11, Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)
{a) Composition of the Group {cont'd)

Name ofcompany Principal activities
{Country ofincorporation) (place of business)

Held through Hangzhou Yourun

Yue Hai Calour Printing Manufactuing and sake of
and Packaging Cd., Ltd flexibbe packaging

[

{"Yue Hai") praducts
People’'s Republic of (People's Republic of
- China o Chinaj ’

Held through Yue Hat
- Jla Hug Packaging and Manufacturing and sale of

Printing Co., Lid, flexible packaging
("Jia Hua") producls

Peaple's Republic of {People’s Republic of
China | China)

(1) Audited by Emst & Young LLP, Singapaore,

]

Percentage

of equity

Costof investment . held by the
by the Company Group

2014 2013 2014 2013
RMBDOD. . RMBOOD % %

= - 51 51

8714 8714

(2) Audited by member firms of EY Global in China for the purposes of consolidation.

- Legs than RMB1,000.

{In. Chinese Renminbi)

Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)
(b} Interast in subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest (“NCi")
The Group has the following subsidiaries that have NCI that are material to the Group:

Profit Accumulated
Proportion allocatedto  NCI at the

of NCI during . end of the
Name of Principal place of ownership thereporting  reporting Dividends
W busi heldby NCI ~ period period paid to NCI
% RMBT00 RME'000 RMB'000
31 Decamber 2014
Yue Haiand Jia People's 48 5017 55,892 . 4.588
Hua [V Republic of
China

31 December 2013;

Yue Hai and Jim People's 49 5137 55,441 12178
Hug ! Republic of

China

{1)Yue Hai and Jia Hua are analysed as a group as they are in the same line of business
and their business and activities are integral to each other.

Significant restrictions; *
The nature and extent of significant restrictions on the Group's ability fo use or accass assels
and settie fiabilities of subsidianes with material non-controfling interests are:

Cash and cash equivalents of RMBT13,887,000 held in People's Republic of China are
subject to local exchange cantral regulations. These requlations. places restriction on the _
amount of currency being exported ather than through dividends,



Green Bulld Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

(In Chinesa Renminbi)
11. Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

(&) Summarised financial information about subsidiaries with material NCI

Summarised financial information including consclidation adjustments but befare

Intercompany eliminations of subsidiaries with material nen-controlling Inferests are as

follows:

Summarised balance sheets

¥ Haj and Jia Hua

Current .
Assels
Liatilites

Netcurant assets

Non-current
Assals

Liabilities

Met non-current assets’
Net assats

Summarisad statemant of comprahensive incoma

Revanua
Profit before income tax
Incomelax expense

Profit after fax

Summarised statement of cash fMlow

Ketcash flows generated from operating activites

Netcash llows used |n investing activities
Met cash flows used in financing sctivities

2014 2013
RME'00D RME'000
176,346 142,710
(150,845)  {127.821)
25,501 14,680
82,370 101,579
{2.817) {2,315)
B9.553 09,264
115,054 114,153

2014 2013
RMB'000 RME"000
250,102 245418
10,832 13,124

715) {2,668)

10.247 10,456

2014 2013
RME'ODD  RMBD00
3,927 8,320
(1.279) (4, 198)
(3,098) (5,269)

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)
11. Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd) \| : }

(d) Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 12 June 2014, the Company acquired 100% stake in WYW Capital Pte Lid. which in
fum owned 100% in Harbin Shengming Energy Saving Technology Co., L].cl {lhe "New
Subsidiaries”) for a nominal consideration of S$1,

The Group has acquired the New Subsidianies to provide altemative revenue streams to
the Group and improve its profitabiiity. The Group intends to utilise Harbin Shengming
as a vehicle o underiake project-based activities Involving energy conservation sarvices
and sustainable developments,

The balante sheet and major classes of assets and liabilities of the New Subsidiaries as
al the date of acquisition are as follows:

Fair value
" recognised
an
acquisition
2014
RMEB'0D0
Property, plant and equipment ' 857
Deferred expenditee 298
nventories 298
Trade and other receivables B0B
Cashand cash equivalants 77
2,139
Trade and other ua‘yalﬁes 2711}
Diue te helding company, non-trade = (471}
(3,182)
Total identifiabie nel liabilites at falr value - 11,043)
Total consideration paid =
Effects of exchange rate diffaences (29}
Goodwill on acgusibon of the New Subisidianes {1,072}
Total consideration paid \ y =
Cash and cash equivalents of the acquired New y
Subsidiaries 7T
Met cash inflow on acquisition of the New Subsidiaries i
—

* Less than RMB1,000



Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

. Investment in subsidiaries {cont'd)
{e) Put option on subsidiaries

The Company has a put option with a related parly {in which the Group’s ex Non-Exscutive
Chairman is & controlling shareholder), o put the Company's interest in certain subsidiaries,
namely Hangzhou Yourun, Yue Hai and Jia Hua, to the related party at the prevailing net asset
value of Company’s interest in these subsidiaries. The put option will expire on 30 April 2015

12. Intangible assets
i Provisional y
Note = Goodwill relationship Software Total
RMB'000 RMBT0C  RMBD00 RME'D00

Group
Cast.

At 1 January 2013 - 2,700 269 2.9689
| ] Additions \ . - \ - - -

At 51 December 2013 and

1 January 2014 = 2,700 269 2,989
Additions = = L 5
Acquisition of subsidiarias 11 1,072 - - 1,072
At 31 December 2014 1.072 2,700 274 4.046
Amortisation:. = - )
At 1 January 2013 - 2,700 242 2,842
Amartisation for the year sf - - I'10 10

At 31 December 2013 and

1 January 2014 = = 252 252
Amortisation for the year 5 - . - 5 5]

At 31 December 2014 = 2,700 25T 2957

Net carying amount:
At 31 December 2014 I 1.072 = 17 1,089

At31 December:2013 - - T 17

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

12,

Intangible assets (cont'd)

Provisional accounting of the ac:quislhun of subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2014 as the purchase price allocation of the acguisition has not been
completed, the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities, and the goodwill arising from
the acquisiion have been determined on a provisional basis. Based on provisional
accounting, goodwill of RMB 1,072,000 as & residual amount has been recognised in the
cansolidated financial statements as management has not completed the identification and
valuation of any intangible assets arising from the subsidiaries’ contracts.

Managemen! considers that thena ara no indicators for Impairment of provisional goodwill
as of 31 December 2014, ak the New Subsidiares are wali-positionad In the green
technology Industry and can generate slgnificant revenues and cash flows.

Provisional goodwill arising from this acguisition and the camying amount of identiflable
asaats and labilities will be adjusted on a retrospective basis when the purchase price
allocation ks finalisad.

Impact of the acquisition on profit or loss

From the acquisition date, New Subsidiaries has contributed RMB 30,545,000 of revenue
and RMB 30,927,000 to the Group's profit before tax for the year. If the business
combinafion had taken place at the beginning of the year, there is no impact on the Group's
revenue and the Group's profit afier tax would have been RMB27,358,000,

Amortisation expense

The amartisation of customer relationships and software areincluded in the administrative
expenses line item in the income statement.

The remaining useful lives ars as follows:

Softwara  2to byears (2013: 2 to 5 years)
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{In Chinese Renminbi)

13,

14

Other Inmtmanén
Group
2014 2013
RME'000 RMB'0D0
Nan-current: 3

Avaltable-for-safe inyesimanls
-Equily instruments (unquoled), at cost e i

The ungqucted equity instrument is stated at cost bess any accumulated impairment losses
because there are no quoted market prices for such equity investment. In addition, the

| variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot De reasonably assessed. Accordingly a reasenable
estimate of the fair value cannot be made.

Deferred expenditure -
Mot Group
RMBTOD

Group :

Cost:

At 1 January 2013 f / =

Additions -

AL 3 December 2013 and | January 2014 =

Acquisition of subsidiares. 258

Additions 202

At 31 December 2014 T 500

Ameytization

At 1 January 2013 =

Amaortisation for-the year 5 = -

A 31 Dgc.emher 2013 and 1 January 2014 o
I Amartisation for he year : 5 ! 71

At 31 December 2014 T

Net canying amourt;
At 31 December 2014 ? 429

At 31 December 2013 - =

Green Build Technolegy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinesa Renminbi)

14,

15

Deferred axpenditure (cont'd) \ .

Deferred expenditure relates to expenditure incurred on the Group's project-based activities
involving upgrading existing infrastructure with the installation of green technology and
architecture and are transferred from contract wark-in-progress after completion of the project
and commencement of the period for the shanng of the proceeds derived from the energy
saved after installation of the green technology and architecture,

Amortisation expense

The amortisation of deferred expenditure is included in the adminisirative expenses line item
in tha income statement and has a remaining useful life of & years.

Deferred tax i
Deferfed income tax as at 31 December relates to the following:
Grou
Consolidated statement
Consolidated of comprehensive
balance sheet income
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

RMB'000 RME'000 RME'000 RMB'000
Deferred tax assefs: y \
Allowances for trade

receivables and invenlory

obsolescence 322, - 322 -
Unutilised tax losses 406 arT a wT
T28 anr 351 7

Deferred tax liabilities:
Falr value adjustments on

acquisition of subsidiaries (2.817) (2,283) (534) 150

Withholding tax Habllity for
undistributed profit - (32) az {10}
{2.817) 2.315) (502} 140

. Net defered income tax

{expensel/cradil 7 ; (151} ; 517

Unrecognised tax losses and deduclible fermporary differences

The Group and the Company has tax losses of approximately RMB 20,510,000 (2013: RMB.
25,074,000) that are avallable for offset against future taxable profits of the Company and
certain subsidiaries in which the losses arose, for which no deferred tax assel is recognised

! due to the uncerainty of its recoverability. The use of lax losses is suibject to the agreement

of the tax autharities and compliance with cartain pravisions of the tax legislation in which the
Company and the loss-making subsidiaries operate.
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{In Chinesa Renminbi)

15, Deferred tax (cont'd)

Al the end of tha reporing perod, no defermad tax llability has been recognized for taxes
that would be payable on the undistibuted earnings of the Group's subsidiarias as the
Group has determined that undistibuted earmings of its subsidiaries will not be distributed
in the foresesabie future, J

Such temporary difference for which no deferred lax liabifity has been recognized
aggregate to RMB 61520000 (2013: RMB41,144 000). The defered tax liability is
astimated to ba RMBE,153,000 (2013 RMB4,114,000) ;

] ||
Group
2014 2013
RME'DD0 RMB'00D

16, Contract work-in-progress

Green Bulld Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Aggregate amount of costs incured to date 3 23,453 =
Attributable profiis {less recognised losses) to date 5,604 -
Less: Progress bilings and advances = =
; 30,057 £
17. Inventories
Group
2014 213

RMB'000  RMB'000

Balance shest

Raw materials - 3 : 13,804 14,001 -
Work-in-progress 2778 2,344

| Finished goods | 10,125 B.ETH
Total inventones at lower of cost and net realisable value 26,705 23,113

Consolidated income statement

Inventories recognised a an expense in cost of sales 221,587 207,581
Inclusive of the following credit

- write-back for jnvertory obsolescence (Nole 5) (518) 84

During the year, there was & write-back of allowance for inventory obsolescence
amounting to RMB 518,000 (2013: RMB 94,000) due to the sale of the written down
inventories,

Write-back for allowance for inventory obsolescence was made when the related
inventories were sold above Lheir carmying amounis.

{In: Chinese Rgnmin-tli]

4 -
18, Trade and other receivables

Group Company
MHote 2014 2013 2014 2M3
RME'000 RMB 000 RME'000 RME000
Trade receivables
Third paries B4, 048 T2.214 - —
Bills receivables 31,289 30822 - -
Less: Allowance for trade
recelvabies '
(non-refated paries) {2,066) (1.863) - =
1
113,282 101,073 - -
Diue from related parties,
trade 5571 2.382 - -
118,853 103,455 - =
Other recelvables \ \
Due from halding company,
non-trade 18 - ‘18 -
Due from corporate
shareholder, non-frade 183 142 183 142
Due from subsidiaries
{non-trade) - - - 28
212 142 212 171
Govemment gram -
recelvables 16,832 - - -
Other recelvables I 17.025 m S 26
Refundable deposits =787 38 38 38
34 656 951 250 238
Total trace and other
receivables 153,500 104,408 250 238
Add: Cash at bank and on
hand : 20 5,888 : 9,246 114 304 '
Add: Pledgad deposits 20 9 646 54684 - -
Total lnans and receivablas 1689 143 118,118 384 G4z

Ifb
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{In Chinese Renminbi)

18,

Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables from third parties and related parties are recognised at their oniginal
invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recegnition and are non-interest
bearing. The credit period i5 generally for a period of two months, and may exiend fo three
maonths for key customers. The Group seeks 1o maintain strict control over its cutstanding
receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk,” Overdue balances are
regularly reviewed by senior management.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, trade re-cewahles of the
Group are denominated in RMB. ! 2

Bills receivables

These receivables are non-interest beanng and have an average malurity of B manths
{2013; 8 months),

The carrying amolnt of bllls recaivables pladged as securly for 1nnemsl—naanrng barnk loans
granted 1o the Group amounted to RMB 20'5.3-1. 000 (2013: RME 11,004 DDD] (Nota 24).

Due from holding company/corporate sharsholderisubsidianies, non-trade

These balances ars unsecured, non-interest bearng and repayable within the next twelve
months.

Government granit recelvablas

Govemnment grant receivables are from the local gwemmenla for the green technology

senvice projects undertaken by the subsidiaries.
ﬁ)ﬂ;ﬂrmcﬂj\f&bﬂa&

Other receivables mainly consist of weallh management products that mature daily and
have an annual Interest of 3.8%.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial yearended 31 December 2014

{In' Chinese Renminbl)

18,

Trada and other recelvables (cont'd)

Receivables that are past dise but not impaired

Thea Group has trade recelvables (including retated parties) amounting to RMB 36,895,000
{2013: RMB 10,923,000} that are past due al the end of the reporting period but not
impaired. These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
Group

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMEB'000
Trade recelvables past due but nof impaired: J .

Less than 20 days 27848 6,586

80 to 360 days 2,047 4337
36,895 10,823

These trade receivables are nol impairad as thare were either auhsequent receipts or ihajr
relate to customers with pood credit history, \

Recefvables that are impaired

The Group has irade recelvables that are individually Impaired as at the end of the
reporting period and the movement of the allowance accounts used to record the
impairment are as follows:
Group
Individually impaired
2014 203
RMB'0O0 RAEB"000

Trade receivables = nominal amounts 2,068 1.863
Less; Allowance for impaiment i (2,088) “(1,963)

Maovement in sllowance accounis!

At beginning of the year ) {1,963 1.524)
Charge for the year (Note 5) ) Y {103) {139) '
" Atend of the year ] 20661 (1.963)

Trade recaivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting
period relate to deblors. tha'l_ara In significant financial difficutties and have defaulted on
paymenis. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements,

None of tha above amounts relale to balances with refated parties.
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18,

Prepayments
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMBQ00 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Non-current
Prapayments forproperty, plant

and equipment 1.413 682 - -
Current
IPrepald operating expenses I 1) 931 12 14

Cash and bank balances
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB'000 BMB' D00 RMB'000 BMB'000

\

Cash at bank and E)I'I hand ' 5.988 9,248 114 304

Pladgead deposits ' B.B4B 5,484 - -
15,534 14,710 114 304

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has pledged deposits amounting to RMB 9,646,000
(2013: RMB 5,464,000) for bills payables.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow siatement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise of the RMB 5988000 {2013 RMB 9,246,000} cash at bank and on hand,
aexcluding pledged deposits. =

Cash and bank balances denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB'00D  RMBIOOD  RMB'000  RMB'00D

Singapore dollars 102 202 102 202
United States daliars 12 12 12 12

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are daposits with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The carrving
amounts of the,cash and bank balances approximate their fair values.

Green Build Technelogy Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
Faor the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminki)

21.

Trade and Jmor payables
Group: Company
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
RME'DO0 RMB'000 RMBE0D0 RME'000

Trade payables {current)

Third parties 54,780 30,841 - -
Bills payahles 24 502 10,927 - -
A relsted pany 1,586 - - -
5 - BO8T7- 41,758 - =

Other payables {current) 22 13,744 12,961 467 1,608
Due io a direcior, |

nom-trade 2,297 - = i
Due to halding company,

non-drade 471 - - -
Due to @ related party of a

corperate sharehalder,

non-rade 25 684 = 6,716 -
Due o a related party, \ ;

mon-rade 300 29,229 - 8,009
Trade and other

payables (current) 123,373 4,058 1683 r.7a7
Add: loans and

boowings 24 60,666 80,083 11,766 7403
Total financial iabililies

camed st amortised cosl 214,039 164,141 19,448 15,110

Trade payabies

I ]
Trade payables are non-interest bearing-and are normally settled on 60-day terms. Trade
payables of the Group are primarily denominated in RMB.

Bills payables

Bilis payabln;am nan-interest bearing and are peg;ahla in B months (2013: 6 months). E;ils
payables are secured by time deposit of RMB 9,648,000 (2013: RMB 5,464 .000) (Note 20).

Amaunts dug o a dirgcior, holding company and nelated parties, non-trade ]

These balances are unsecured, hon-interest beanng and repayable within the next twelve
manths.

The ultimate holding company has given an undertaking to provide financial support to the
Group and the Company amounting to RMB 25,264,000 and RMB 6,716,000 respectively,
to enable them to repay the amounts due to a related party of a corporate shareholder,
nan-trade, should the amounts due be recalled.
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22,

23.

v 24,

Other payables, current ’
/ Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB'000 RMEB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Other payables 11,068 11,058 216 1,087
Acerued nparatiw BXpeEnses 2,678 1,802 751 &11
13,744 12961 -1 1,683

Cther payables mainly relate to payables for purchase of property, plant and equi:pmenf
EII"Bd other miscellanegus operating e'anm These payables are nnn—ll‘llsresi bearing and
! normally settled on a 30-day tarms.! v 3
Other liabilities Group

2014 2013

RMB'000 RMB000

Advance paymants from cuslomers 253 242
Loans and borrowings )
y Group Company
Maturity 2014 2013 2014 2013
RME'000 RME'000 RMB'O0C  RME'000

Current;
Loan from corporate

shareholder [Note (af 2015 51685 28T 5,185 2871
Loan from'a related

party [Nete (a)] 2015 4,488 4 488 4,488 4.488
Loan fram holding = =

company [Mote{a)] 205 2113 - 2,113 -
| Obligation under a |
finance: leass {current

portion) [Mote (300]) 2015 - 44 - 44
Bank loans:
- gecured by bills

recaivable [Note (b 205 7.800 9,840 - -

- secured by property,
plant and aquiprhenl
~and land use rights / /
[Mote (] 2015 42,700 43,700 = =

- secured by guarantess
[Note [d]] 2015 28,300 19,140 = =
00,666 80,083 11,766 7.403

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi)

24,

Loans and ﬁmwings (cant'd)
Obligation under a finance lease

The obligation s secured by a charge over the leased assel (Nole 2). The effective
interesi rate of the lease is Nil% (2013: 4.47%) per annum,

(a) The Ioans from holding company, corporate shareholder anﬁ related party are
interast-free and unsecurad.

Bank loans

{b) As at 31 December 2014, an interest-bearing loan of RMB 7,800,000 {2013: RMB
9.840,000) is secured by bills receivable and bears interest at 5 88% (2013: 5.60% to
5.88%) per annum.

The bank lean of RMB 42,700,000 (2013: RMB 43,700,000 is secured by property,

(c}
plant and machinary and tand use rights and bears interes! at 5.60% 1o 6.72% (2013:
6. 16% to 7.56%) per annum.

{d) Asal 31 : December 2014, an interest-bearing loan of RMB 28,300,000 (2013: RMB
19,140,000), bears interest of between 5,60% to 6.90% (2013: 5.80% to 7.00%) per
annum and is secured by guarantees from related parties (Note 29(c)).

\ z ] .
Share capital
Group and Company
2014 2013
55000 RMB “000 S5%'000 RMB ‘000
{equivalent) ({equivalent)
Issued and fully paid:
Al beginning and end of tha
year : =

- 238 858,796 ordinary

shares " 22,851 113178 22 851 113,179

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by
the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vate per share without restriction. The ordinary
shares have no par value.
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26. Restricted reserves - ) Group
2014 / 2013
RMB'D00 RME"00D
Reserve funds
At beginning of the year 3018 3.018
Transfermed from revenue EServes 57 -
Atend of the year 3075 3.018

Emterprise expansion funds

I Al beginning and end of the year J o I.4§@ 1,439
Capital reserve
Atbeginning and end of the year g 3018 3,018
Tolal restricted reserves \ ) 7.532 7.475

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises operating with only foreign
capital in the PRC, profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are available for distribution
in the form of cash dividends to the investors after the Group has (1) satisfied all tax
figbilities; (2] provided for losses in previous years and {3) made appropriations to statutory
reserve funds, including reserve fund, enterprise expansion fund, capital reserve and staff
bonus and welfare fund ("SBWF"). The Group is required to appropriate not less than 10%
of its ‘annual profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards and regulations applicable to the Group, to the reserve fund until the reserve
fund reaches 50% of the registered capital. Appeopriation to the enterprise expansion fund
and SBWF is determined at the discration of the board of directors.

The enterprise expansion and resarve funds are not free for distribution bs dividends. The
reserve fund can be usad either o offsél accumulated losses or be capitalised as equity.
The enterprise axpansion fund can be used to increase capital upon approval of the
redevant authorities, SBWF can be usad for special non-recurring bonus or collective
welfare of the employees and assels acquired through this fund shall not be taken as
assets of the Gmﬁp.

SBWF is classified and reportad under the catagory of curment liabilities in the consolidated

balance sheat and in respect of the profit or less prepared in accordance with FRSs, as-a

d'mrqe to the profit before tax as it is a liability to the amplo;reas

For the year ended 31 Dacember 2014 the subsidiary, Jia Hua Pa:kaglng and Printing
Co,, Lid. ("Jia'Hua") has appropriated RMB 57,000 (2013: Nil) to the reserve fund from the

profit after tax in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations applicable to
Jia Hua.

Capital reserve represents resarve which is not free for distribution as dividends pursuant
to the relevant lews and regulations in PRC and can only to be capitalised as equity,

Foreign l:ur\'ency translation reserve
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB 000 RMEB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At beginning of the year 1,640 848 631 408
Met effect of translation

diffarences 471 782 278 223
Atend of the year 2m 1,640 a1 B31

The foreign currency transiation reserve perains to exchange differences ansing from the
transtation of the financial statements of the Company whose functional currency s SGD
to the Group's presentation currency of RMB.
Accumulated losses
Company
2014 2013
RME'OD0  RME'000

At beginning of the year {118, 770) (115,590)

Tatal comprehensive logs for the year (4,952) 14,180)
Atend of the year (h24.73z) (M9770)

Related party transactions

In addition to. those related’ party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following significant fransactions between the Group and related parties

who are not members of the Group took place di.lr:ng the financial year on terms agraed

between the parties:

{a) Sale and purchase n?ynpda and services |
" Group
2014 2013
RMB'000  RMB'DO0

Income

Sales to related paries (5.455) (10,263)
Expenses ' s
Purchases of goods from related parties 3,185 -
Operating lease expenses charged by related parties 300 -

IEL
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29. Related party transactions (cont'd)

(@) Sale and purchase of goods and services (cont'd)

Related parties are mainly companies in which a Company's director is a controlling
shareholder over or has significant influence,

The transactions with related parties are made in accomdance with the pricing policies
determined amongst the group companies. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsscured, interest-free, and settiement occurs in'cash,

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2014, the Group has not recordad any impairment of
receivables ralating to amounts owed by related parties (2013; Nil), This assessment
is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial posll.lun of the refated
partiss and the market in which the ralated parties operate. "

{b) Compensation of key management personnel
Group
2014 2013
RMB'0D0 RMB'000

Shar term employes benefits 3,044 2,732
Defined contributions plans / 118 17
3,163 2,849

Comprise ameaunts pad fa)

- Direciors of the Company T 735 588
- Other key management-personnel 2428 2,281
= - 3,183 2,845

The remuneration of key management personnel are datermined by the remuneration
committee giving regard to the performance of individuals-and mafkal trend.

(€} Youcan Foods (Hangzhou) Co,, Ltd., a related party of a corporate sharehalder, have
provided guarantees to the banks in respect of the interest-bearing loans granted to
the Group, as further detailed in Note 24 to the findncial statements.

{d) As disclosed in MNote 11, during the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group

\ - completed the acquigition of the New Subsidiaries from a director and ex-director, As |

the New Subsidiaries were in net Babilites pesition at the point of Bouwsrhm the
consideration given was a nominal amount of S$1.

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries
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30. Cnmniitmenq and contingent liabilities \ \

(a) Mon-canceflable operating lease - as lessee
The Company entered into 8 commercial lease agreement for the rental of the office

located in Singapore. The lease has a remaining lease term of 23 months with option for
renewal,

Operating lease pa;,rrrranls recognised as an expense for the continuing operations in the
statement of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2014
amounted to RMB 936,000 (2013: RMB 288,000 (Note 5).

Fulure rr;inll'num lease payments payable unl‘:lﬂr nan-cancellable operating |E$$EEI..ES al
31 Dacamber are as follows: i
! - Group
2014 2013
RMB'000  RME'000

Mat laler than ona year 288 345

Later than one year but not later than five years 252 G62
] 1]
340 1.008

(b} Operating lease commitments —as lessor

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has entered into commercial property leéases on its
warehouses. Thasa non-canceliable leases have remaining lease terms of up to one year.

Operating lease income réon-gnisa-d as income for the conlinuing operations.in the
stalemant of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to RMB Nil (2013: RMB 228,000) (Note 4).

Futura minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operalmg leases as at 31
Dember are as follows: G
2014 23
RMB'000 RMB'000

Mot later tham one year - 100
Later than ane year but not later than five years - -
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a0.

.

(€] Finance lease commitments

Commitments and contingent liabilities (cont'd)

The Group and Company have a finance lease for @ motor vehicie, As at 31 December
2014, the finance lease is fully settled.

Future minimum l|ease payments under the finence |sase together with the present

valua of the net minimum lease payments ara as follows:

Mot later than qﬁ'e year
Later than ana year but not
later than five years

Total minimum lease
paymems

Less: Amounts representing
finance charges

Prasent value of minimum
lezse payments

Segment information

Packaging products.

Group and Company

(d} Capital expenditure commitments

2014 2013

Prasent Present

Minimum value of Minimum walue of
lease payments lease | paymenis
paymenis {Note 24} payments (Note 24)
RMB'0DD RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'DD0
- - a1 44

e - 51 44

- = 4] =

- - 44 4

Group
2014 2013

+  Green tedmf':dogy services; and

Contracted but not provided for - plant and machinery

RMB'O00 RMB'000

- 482

For management purposes, the Group s organised Into business units based on thelr
products and servicss and has two reporiable operating segments as follows:

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinese Renminbi}

a1

Segment [nfqnnatlon_[cunt‘d]

Subsequent to the acquisition of the New Subsidianes during 2014, the Group expanded its
business o inclede those enar'ﬁy consarvalion services and the ‘installation of gresn
technology and architecture. Prior to this, the Group only ehgeged in the business of the
manufacturing and sale of flexible packeging products, as such, no further operating
segmental information is presented for 2013,

Mo operating segments have been aggregated fo form the above reporable operating
segments,

Managemant monitors the operating resulls of |is business units separately for the purpose -

of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
parformance is evaluated based on cperating profit or loss and is measured consistently wilh
operating profil or loss in the consclidated findncial statemenis. However, ocertain of the
Groups financing (including finance costs and finance income) and Income taxes are
managed-on a group basls and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis in a manner simitar
to transactions with third parties.

Mo further g&)gfaWiuw segment information is presented. as 100% (2013:; 100%) of the
Group's revenue is derived from cusiomers based in the Peopie’s Republic of China, and all
the Group's assets are located in'the People's Republic of China.
Adjustment
Green Packaging and
technology  products  elimination  Note Consolidated

RMED0O RMBOO0 RMBTOD RMB'000

2014

Revenue : - ’
Extemal customens 30,548 259,102 - A 288 651
Results - : :

Interest Incomea {3 {172} - {175}
Depreciation and

amortisation 147 11,608 2 B 75T
Other non-cash

expanses!{write-back) - 1415) - C {415)
Segment profiifloss) 30927 10,932 L [5.224) D 36,535
Segment assets 56,714 268,715 e LE 325,087
Other disclosure
Addition to proparty, plant

and equipment 2,087 1,322 - 3418
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31, Segment information (cont'd)

(&) There are no inter-segmeant reyenues.

{B) The adjustment refers to depreciation and amortisation of comman property, plant
and equipment used in both the green technology and packaging products
segments at the corporate level,

(C]  Ofher non-cash expenses consist of inventories written back and allowance for
frade receivables as presented in the respective notes to the financial statements.,

(D) Ségment profit(loss) does not include corporale and common expenses amounting
o RMEB 5,324,000,

| ]

(E) The following ltems are added lo segment assels lo arrve al the consolidaled
assels
Segment assals do not include the following-corporale assets which are not
aliocated to the individual segments for management purposes:

’ 2014
RMB'0DD

Propey, plant and equspmént 4

Other receivables 307

Cash and cash equivalents 247

558
——

B39

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

{In Chinesa Renminbi)

32. Fair value of financial instruments \| : L

(=)

(&)

(g}

Fair value hierarchy

The Group categories fair valua measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is
dependent on the valuation inpuls used as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for Identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access al the measurament date,

Lewel 2 — Inputs other that quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsarvable for
the.asset or kability, either directly of indirectly, and.

Leval 3 — Unabservable inputs for the asset or liabillty.

Falr value measuraments that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorisad n
its antirely in'tha same level of the falr value hierarchy as the lowest level Input that is
significant to the entire measuremeant.

Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value

The fair valuées of the invastments carmed at fair valua are delermined by referenca 1o
quoted prces in active markets. The falr valug measurement af the investments untder
the Group are classified under Leval 1 of the fair value hierarchy, based on quoled
prices (unadjustad) In active markets for identical assets and’ liabilites. As at 31
Decamber 2014, the Group does not have any of thase investmants.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value
and whose cmk:g amounts are a reasonable Bppfﬂxﬁml-'an of fair value

Cash and | bank batances (Nole 20), trade and other recelvables (Note 18),
inferest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 24), trade and other payables (Note 21).

The carying amounts of these financial-assets and liabilites are @ reasonable
approximation of fair values, either due to their shori-term nature or that they are floating
rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the
reporting period. y F
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a2,

Fair value of financial instruments

{d) Falr value of financial Instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value
and whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

The fair value of financial liabilites by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose camying amounts are not a reasonable approximation of fair value are as

follows:
Mote 2014 2013

Carrying Carrying

amount Falr value armoum Fair value

RME'DD0 RME'000 RMB'000 RMB'DOO
Group

Financlal assels
Equity instruments

{unquoted), st cost 13 ] et ooE =¥
Financial Ifabilities

Obligation under a - 3

finance lease 24 - = 44y (51)

Qbligation under a finance lease and other payables

The fair value is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at market
horrowing rates of an equivalent instrument &t the end of the reporting period, The fair
value is classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,

* Investmenl in equity instruments (unquoted), al cost

Fair value information has not been disclosed for the Group's Investment in equily
instruments that are carried al cost because fair value cannol be measurad reliably as
thera are no obsarvable market prices for a similar equity instrument. The variability in
the range of reasonable falr value estimates is significant and the probabilities of the
varous estimates cannot be reasonably assessed. The Group does not intend to
dispesa of this investment in the foreseeable future. The Group intends to eventually
disposa of this Investment through sale to other investors,

Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries
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33,

Financial risk managﬂrmnt objectives and policies \

The Group and the Company are expased to financial nsks arising from its operations and
the use of financial instruments, The Group's principal financial iAstruments comprise
interest-bearing loans and borrewings and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of
thesa financial instruments is o raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and fiabilities such as trade and other recaivables and trade
and other payables, which arise direcily from its operations,

The key financial risks include interest rate risk, hguidity nsk, foreign currency risk and eredi
risk. Tha Board of direclors reviews and agrees polickes and proceduras for the managemeant!

of thase risks, which are exaculed by the Financial Controller, Tha Audit Commitles provides
independam oversight 1o the effectiveness of the risk management process. 1t |s, and has
baen hmoughout the cument and pravious financial year the Gmp s policy thal no
dar{wllms zhall be undertakan,

There has been no change to the Group's exposure (o these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's and the
Company's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,
The Group's Bnd the Company's exposure to intérest rate risk arises primarily from their
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, The Group does not use derivative financial
instrumants ta hedga its interest rate risks.

The Group's policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debis and
o keap the majonty of its loans and borrowings at fixed rates of interast.

Sensitivily analysis for inferest rate risk

The fellowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the

impact on borrowings). The analysis is performel:l on ma assumption that borruwmgs ara

rolied over when due.

Increasel  Increasal
decrease in  (decrease)

basis  onprofit
points before tax
RMB'DO0
2014
RMB +50 (395}
RMB ) ) -50 305
2013 )
RMB +50 (363}
RMB -50 363

Information relating to-the Group's interest rate exposure is-also disclosed in Note 24.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial olligations due fo shortage of funds, The Group's and the Company's exposure
to liquidity risks arises pnmarily from mismatches of the maturities of financia! assets and
liabilies. The Group monilors its risk 1o a shortage of funds-using & recurring sbility
planning tool,

The Group's and the Company'’s objective s lo maintain & balance between the
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank accepted drafts and
Interast-bearing loans and borrowings.

] ||
Thea Group refles on continulng financkal suppodt from a relaled party as disclosed ImNota
i 1

The Group's and the Company's liquidity risk managament palicy is to maintain sufficient
liquid financial assets and credit faclities with reputable banks. Substantial amounts of
the Group's cash and bank balances are deposited with reputable financial institutions
such as DBS Bank Lid, Bank of Communications, Industrial and Commarcial Bank of
China, etc. 50 as fo prowide the Group with the flexibility to meet working capital and
gapital investment needs.

At the end of the reporiing period, approximately 100% (2013: 100%)and 100% (2013:
100%) of the Group's and Company's loans and borrowings, respectively; will mature in
less than one year based on the camying amount reflected below, 36.5% (2013 37.9%)
af such Inans were rolled- over for repayment or repaid subsequent to year-end.
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33 Financial risk management objectives and poﬂi"tiau (cont'd)

Liguidity risk {coni'd)
Analysis of financial instniments by remaining contractual matunties

The table befow summarises the maturty profile of the Group's and the Company's
financial assets and liabilities &t the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted
contractual repayment obligations.
1 year or Over §
less 1to Syears  years Total
RMB'O00 . RMEDN0 RME'000  RMET0D

Group |
2014 V)

Financial assats:

Cashiand bank balances 15,634 - - 15,634

Trade ard other receivables 153,509 - - 163,509

Ciher investments - 996 - o955

Total undistounted financial assets 168,143 996 - 170,450

\ i \

Financial llabilities:

Trade and other payables 123,373 - == 123,373

Loans and bomo wings 80 BEE. - - B0 BEE
Interesion joan amnd bomowings 1432 - - 1432

Total undscounted finencial

Hatilities . 215471 - = 215471

Total net undiscounted financizl

ligbilites (48,328) 896 - (45,332}
Company |
2014 .
Financial assets:
Cash and bank balances 114, = - 114
Trade and oihe. ecaivatiles 250 s = - 250
Total undiscounted financial assels 364 .= = 364
Financial liabiities: - ’
Trade and other payables , | TEE - -, Tphed
Loans and Bomowings 11,766 - - 11,766
Total und iscounted financial

lgtilities 10,449 - - 18,449
Total net undiscounted financial

lisbilitiea {18.085) - = ($9.085)

ey
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'33.

Financial risk rm;nagama'ﬁl objactives and pnlinlosln:mm'dj'

Liquidity risk
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contraciual malurities {coni’d)
1 year or Over 5
less 1to 5years  years Total
RMB000 RMEB' 000 RME'000 RMB'000
Group
213
Financial assefs:
Cash and bank balances 14,710 - - 14,710
! Trade and ofher receivables | 104,408 - -4 104 408
Other investmants £ 986 = 298
Total undiscounted financial assets 119,116 996 - 120,112
Financial abllities;
Trade and.other payabies 84,058 - - B4 (158
Loans and bomowings . B0 OB3 3 - - B0, 083
Interest on loan and bormowings 1,443 - - 1,443
Total undiscounted financkal
liabilities 165.584 - - 165,584
Taotal pet undiscounted financigl
labilities (46, 468) 096 a (45.472)
Gomplnjr
2013 3 i
| Financial assets; | I
Cash and bank balances ang - - 04
Trade and other recelvables 238 - = 238
Total undiscounted financial assets 542 N - - 542
Financial liabilities:
Trada and other payables 1.707 ~ e = T.707
Loans and bomowings ' 7,403 2 oat - 7,403
Total undiscounted financial
lishilies 15110 - - 15110
Total net undiscouniad financial
lkabilities (14.568) - - (14.568)
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33.

Financial risk management cbjectives and policies {cont'd) L
Foreign currency risk

The Group operates predominantly in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC") and usually
transacts in Renminbi ["RMB"), the official currency in China. Curently, the PRC
government imposes control over foreign currencies, RMB is not freely convertible.
Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter into exchange transactions through the
People's Bank of China or other autharised financial institutions. Payments for imported
materials or services and remittance of eamings of the subsidiaries to the Company, which
is outside of the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currancies which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earmings of the enterprise, or exchanges of RMB lor
fareign currancy must ba arranged through the People’s Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions, Approval for exchanges at the People's Bank of China or other
authortsed financial instilutions is granted 1o eanterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such
as purchase of imporied materials and remittance of earnings. While conversion of RMB
inte Singapora dollars or other currencies can generally be effecied at the People’s Bank
of China ‘or gther authorised financial institutions, there is no guarantee thal it can be
effecied at all times. |

The Group does not have significant transaction Gumency exposures. \
Transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in
a currency other than the respective functional curmencies of Group entities, primarily SGD
and RMB, are not significant. The foreign climencies in which these fransactions are
denominated are mainly US Dollars (USD) and Euro (Euro),

The Group and the Company also hold cash and bank balances denominated in foreign
currencies'for working capital purposes. At the end of the reporting period, such foreign
currency balances (mainly in USD and SGD) amounted to RMBE 114,000 (2013: RMB
304,000) and RME 114,000 (2013: RMB 304,000) for the Group and the Company

respectively. - B ; 1

The Group manages its foreigh exchange exposure risk by malching, as far as possible,
receipts and payments in each individual currancy.  Foreign currency is converted into the
relevant funclional currency as and when the management deemed necessary. The
unhedged exposure s reviewed and moniiored chosely on an ongolng basis and
management will consider hedging any material exposure where appropriate, :



Green Build Technology Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financlal statemants
For the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2014

{In' Chinesa Renminbi}

33,

Financial risk malnugwneiit objectives and policies :[:unt"d]

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on cutstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's and the Company's exposura 1o credit
risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other financial assats (including

unguoted equities and cash and bank batances). the Group and the Company minimise
credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth whife minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and
(craditworthy third parties. |1 s the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit lerms ané subject 1o credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant,

For transactions that do ot oceur in'the country of the relevant sperating unk, the Group

does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of management. The Group does

not- have sigﬂ'rﬂca\nt exposure 10 any individual c:.lsto\mar or counterparty. As the Group,
trades only with recognisad and croditeorthy third paries, there is no requirament for

collateral
Exposure fo credit dsk

With respect to credit nsk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise
cash and bank balances and available-for-sale investment, the Group's exposure fo credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum expostre equal to the carrying
amount of thesa instrumants:

There are no significant concentrations of credit ﬁ-skswithin'ma Group or the Company,
| Financial assets that are neither pas! due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy deblors
with good payment record with the Group. Cash and bank balances are placed with
reputable financiatinstitutions,

Financial assets ﬂ:lafa.re aither pas! due or impaired
Information nagardlng financial assels that are sither past due or |mpairﬂd Is disclosed in
Note 18 (Trade and other receivables).
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‘34,

35.

Capital managemeant \ : L

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value,

The Group manages its-capital structure and makes adjustments tait, In the light of changes
in economic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital siructure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital fo shareholders or issue new-shares,
Mo changes were made in the objeciives, paficies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013. L

As disclosed in Note 26, cerain subsidiaries of the Group are required by the Foreign
Enterprise Law of the PRC to contribute to and maintain a non-distributable statutory
resarve fund whesa utilisation is subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This
extermnally imposed capital requirement has been complied with by the above mentioned
subsidiaries for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,

Tha Group is currenily in a net debt and net equity position as at 31 Decamber 2014 (net
debt and net equity position as at 31 December 2013) and will continue to monitor the level
of bormowings and be guided by prudent financial policies. The net debi and equity details as
al therend of the reporting pericds were as follows:

1 -+ Group \
Note 2014 2013

RMB;000 RMB000

Interest-beaning loans and bomowings 24 80,666 80,083
Trade and other payables ba 123,373 84,058
Other Fabilithes 23 253 242
Less: Cash and bank balances 20 (15,634) (14.710)
Net debt 198,658 148,673
Equity attributabbe lo the owners of the Company 43428 20,556
Less: Statutory reserve funds ; . 28 (7.532) 7475
Total equity 3917 13,121

Events after the reporting pcrliud

The Company was placed on the SGX-ST watch-list with effect from & March 2012, In
accordance with Rule 1314 and Rule 1315 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Company
has to submit an application to SGX-ST for its removal from the watch-fist within 24 manths
of the date on which it was placed on the watch-list, failing which the SGX-5T may aither

remaoye the Company from the Official List or suspend trading of the listed securities of the,

Cempany (withoul the agreement of the Company) with a view lo removing the Co-mpqny
from the Official List. On 11 April 2014, the Company succassiully applied for an extension
of a further 12 months to apply for removal from the watch-list, With effect from 24 January
2015, the Company has been officially removed from the SGX-ST walch-list afler fulfilling
the relevant conditions.

Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2014 were authorised I'ar!ssue in
accordance'with a resolution of the directors dated 13 April 2015.



SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS

SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Mo of equity securities | 238,859,796

Class of shares ! Ordinary share

Woting rights : Oni vote per share

Thare is no treasury share held in the issued capital of the Company.
STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

MO, OF
_ SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS  SHAREHOLDERS o) __NO OF SHARES 4%
1-99 1] 0.00 (1] 0.00
100 - 1,000 3 28 17,95 26,824 .01
1,001 - 10,000 77 49.36 414,000 a7
10,001 - 1,000,000 42 26.62 4,690 500 197
1,000,001 AND ABOVE g 50T 233,728,472 a7,85
TOTAL 156 100.00 238,859,796 100.00

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS y
{As recorded in the Register of Substantial Sharaholders)

Direct Interest
%
City Green Bulld Technelogy Pte Ltd () @ 157,518,111 65.85
Harbin Dali Aluminium Dotrs & Windows

Praduets Ca,, Lid,'" 4] 0
_ Zhao Lizhi 2 o 0
Tang Xiuli % 0 0

Chan Mang Ghoon 19,106,000 B.00

Notas:

Desmed Intarest

157.518,111

157 518,111
157,518,111

i]

%
0

65.95
65.85

6505

(1) Harbin Dali Aluminium Doors & Windows Products Cos, Lid. is the sole registered shareholder of

City Green Bulld Technalogy Ple Ltd

(2) Zhao Lizhi and Tang Xiull are deemed to be interested in the sharas held by city Grean Build

Technalogy Pte Lid by vifue of Section T of the Companies Act.

{ \

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NO. OF
MAME SHARES
CITY GREEN‘BUILD TECHNOLOGY PTE LTD 157,518,111
f ETBDS VICKERS SECURITIES {(SINGAPORE) PTE 20,228,500
CHAN MANG GHOON 18,106,000
HRE ¥BY INVESTMENTS PTE LTD 11,523,000
PHILLIP BECUHITIES PTE LTD 8,684 000
WU XUEYING 8,360,000
UOB KAY HIAMN PBNATE LIMITED 5 2,844 000
CHINAINVEST TRADING LIMITED 2 723,861
QCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 1,741,000
DERRICK ONG KENG GEE ' 510,000
NG TOONG SENG 461,000
CHEHN LIPING. ] 400,000
LOH SER SDON 400,000
WINMARK IN}I'ESTMENTS PTELTD \ 400,000
ABN AMRO CLEARING BANK Ny ' 375,000
" ONG FOOK THIM 249,000
JIN LOONG PROPERTIES PTE LTD 200,000
TAN LING LEE 200,000
GAN CHIN KIAN 133,000
DES NOMINEES PTE LTD 101,000
TOTAL 237157472

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDINGS IN PUBLIC'S HANDS
26.05% of the Company's sharas are hslg in the hands of public. Accordingly,
ccmpbsd with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-5T.

%

65,95

547

8.00

482
405
350
119
1.14
0.73
0.21
0.19
017
017
017
018
010

0.08
0.08

0.08
0.04

99.28

| the Company has



NOTICE 1§ HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of GREEN BUILD
TECHNOLOGY LIMITED will be held at RELC International Hotel, 30 Orange Grove Road,

GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

{Company Registration No. 200401338W)
(the “Company")

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Singapore 258352 on Thursday, 30-April 2015 at 2.00 p.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1

To  receve and adopt the Audited Accounts for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 tagether with.
the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors of the
Company.

To' approve the payment of Directors' fees of
55100,000 for the financial year ended 31 December
2014.

To approve the payment of Directors' fees of
S5%120,000 for the financial year ending 31 December
2015 to be paid guarterly in arfears.

Ta re-glact Mr Li Bin, wha is rétinng in accordance with
Article 81 of the Company's Artickes of Association as
Director of the Company,

[Sea Explamatory Nota {i)]

To re-elect Mr Zhao Lizhi, whao is refiring in accordance
with Article 97 of the Company's Articles of Association
as Director of the Company.

[See Explanatory Mote (ii)]

To re-glect Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck, who_ is-refiring in
accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association as Director of the Company.

[See Explanatony Mote {iii)]

To re-elect Mr Lu King Seng, who is retiring n
accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association as Directar of the Company.

[See Explanatary Mote (iv)]

To re-slect ‘Or Yao Fengge, who is relifing in
accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association as Director of the Company,

[See Explanatory Mote (v}]

To re-appoint Messrs Emst & Young LLP as Auditors
of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration.

{Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2) :

(Resolution 3)

{Resolution 4)

(Resolution 5)

(Resolution &)

(Resolution 7)

. (Resolution 8)

(Resolution 8)

GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
Notice of Annual General Meeting
Page 2

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, 1o pass the foliowing resolution as an
Ordinary Resalutlon, with or without modifications:

10, Authority to issue shares

That, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the
“Act’) and Rule 806{2) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securibes Trading Limited {"SGX-ST"), 'authority be
and Is hereby given to the Direciors of the Company to sllot and
issue shares and converiible securities in the Company at “any
time and upon such ferms and conditions and for such purposes
and o such persons as the Direciors may in their absolute
discretion Heem fit, to: =

(i}  issue shares in the capital of the Company whether by way
of rights, bonius or otherwise; AR

(i) make or grant offers, agreements or options that might or
would require shares to be issued or other traénsferable
rights to subscribe for or purchase shares (collectively,
“Instruments”) including but not limited to the creation and
issue of warrants, debentures or ofher instruments
convertible into shares;

(ili) Issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments
made to the number of instruments previously issued in
the event af rights, bonus o capitalisation issues,

and (notwithstanding the authority conferrad by the shareholdars

|may have ceased o be in force) Issue sharas in pursuant o any
Instrument made or granted by the Directors while the autharity
was in force, provided always that:

(@) the aggregate number of shares to be lssued pursuant to
this resolutlon {Including shares (o ba issued in pursuance of
Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution)
does not exceed fifty per centum (50%) of the Cbrnpanfé’
total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares, of
which the aggregate number of shares (including shares to
be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granied
pursuant to this Resolution) to be issued other than on a
pro-rata basis to shareholders of the Company does not



GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
Mathce of Annual Genaral Meeting

Page 4

11,

exceed twenty pes centurn (20%) of the tota! number
of issued shares excluding treasury shares, and for
ihe purpose of this Resoluton, the total number of
Issued shares excluding treasury shares shall be the
Company's total number of issued shares excluding
freasury shares at the time this resolution is passed,
after adjusting for;

{ii new shares arising from lhe conversion or
exercise of convertible securities, or

(ify  new shares arising from exercising share

2 ‘options or vesting of share awards outstanding
of subsisling at the time this resolution is
passed, and

(iify ~ any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or
subdivision of the Company’s shares.

(b}  such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the

Company at a ganeral meeting, continue in force until. -

the conclusion of the next Annual General Maeting or
the date by which the next Annual Geperal Mesting of
tha Company is reguired by law to ba heid, whichever
Is garlier.

[See Explanatory Note-(vi)]

Renewal of Shareholders' Mandate for Interested Person
Transactions

That for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited:

(a) approval be given for the renewal of the mandate
for the Company, its subsidiaries and associated
companies or any of them fo enter Into any of the
transactions falling within the types of Interested
Person Transactions as set out in the Appendix o
the MI;II.IBI Report (the "Appendix”) with any party
wha is of the class of Interested Persons described
in the Appendix, provided that such transactions
are carred out on normal commercial terms and in
acvordance with the review procedures of lhe
Company for such Interested Person Transactions
as sel out in the Appendix (the *Shareholders’
Mandate®};

(Resolution 10)

(c)

varied by the Company in & general meeting, continue in
force unfil the conclusion of the next Annual' General
Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next
Annual General Meating of the Company is required by law
ta be held, whichever is earlier; and

authority be given to the Directors of the Company to
complete and do all such acts and things (including
exacuting all such documents as may be requirad) as they
may consider necessary, desrable or expedient to give
effact 1o the Shareholdars’ Mandate as they may think-fit

1
[Ses Explanatory Note (vil)]

12.

To transact any other business which may properly be
transacted at an Annual Genearal Meeting.

=

By Order of the Board

Jong Voon Hoo
Lim Kok Meng
Company Secretaries

15 April 2015

{Resolution 11)
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Explanatory Motas:

(1]

lii)

{if)

(v}

()

1)

(wil)

Motes:

1

2

3]

4)

Mr Li Bin will, upon re-élection as a Director of the Company; remain as an executive director
of the Company.

Mr Zhao Lizhi will, upon re-election as a Direcior of the Company, remain as the
Non-Executive Chairman of the Company’.

Mr Kuan Cheng Tuck will, upan re-alection as a Director of the Company, ramain as Chairman
aof the Audit and Nominating Committees and a member of tha Remuneration Committea. Mr
Kuan Chang Tuck will ba considared independant for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing
Manual of SGX-ST. .

Mr Lu King Seng wIH_- upon re-glection as a Director of lha-Company, remain as Chalirman of
the Remunaration Committes and a member of the Audit and Noeminating Committees. Mr Lu
King Seng willbe considered independent for the purpose of Rule T04(B) of the Listing Manual
of SGX-58T.

Dr ¥ao Fengge will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of
the Audit, Mominating and Remuneration Committees. Dr Yao Fengge will be considered
independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of SGX-5T,

Ordinary Resclution 10 proposed in item no. 10 is 1o empower the Ditectors, from the date of
the passing of Ordinary Resolution 10 to the date of the naxt Annual General Meeting, to issus
Shares in the capital of the Company and {o make or grant instruments (such a5 warrants or
debentures) convertible into Shares, and to issue Shares in pursuance of such instruments,
up to an amount not exceeding in total 50% of the issued Shares (excluding treasury shares)
in the capital of the Company, with a sub-iimit of 20% of the issued Shares {excluding tréasury
sharas) for issues other than on a pro rata basis o shareholders.

The Ordinary Resolution 11 propased in itam 11 above, If passed, will althorise the Interestad
Person Transactions as described in the Appendix to the Annual Report and recurring in the
year and will empower the Directors of the Company to do all acts necessary o give affect to
tha Sharahoidars’ Mandata. This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied by the
Company In a general meating, expifa al the conclusion of the naxt Annual Genaral Meeting
of the Company or the date by which the pext Annual Genaral Meating of the Company is
required by law to be hald, whichever Is tha earlier.

A member entitied to attend and vote at the Annual General Meating is entitied to-appoint a
proxy or proxies (not more than two) to attend and vote on hisfher behalf. A proxy need not

be-a member of the Co'lrrwny.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

If the appointor is & corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of its duly
suthorised officer or attormey

The instrument appointing 8 proxy must be deposited at the Company's registered office at 6
Temasek Boulevard #27-04, Suntec Tower 4, Singapore N38986 at least 48 hours before the

time of the Meating.

APPENDIX - RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS' MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON
TRANSACTIONS

1. Background

The Board of Directors of Grean Buikd Technology Limited (the,*Company”) refer to (a) the Notice of
Elaventh Annual General Meating of the Company datad 8 April 2014 (tha "Notica"), accompanying the
Annual Report 2014, convening the Elaventh Annual General Meeting (“Eleverith AGM*) of the
Company to be hekd on Thursday, 30 Aprl 2015, and (b) Resolution No. 11 under the heading *Special
Business" set out in the Motice:

2. Sharehalders' Mandate

Pursuant to the Company's Circular dated 11 Septamber 2014 (the "Circular”), approval of the
Shareholders was deemed obtained for a shareholders’ mandate (the "Sharsholders' Mandate”) to
enable the Company and its subsidiaries which are considered to be “enfities at risk” within the
meaning of Rule 904{2) of the fisting manual (the “Listing” Manual™) of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-ST"), in their ordinary course of businesses, fo enter into categories
of Iranshcibuns with specified classes of the Company's interested persans, provided that such
transactions are anlsrad into on an arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms. Tha details of
the interested person transactions and sharehaolders' mandate wera disclossd in pages 19 to 25 of the
said Company's Circular,

3. Proposed Renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate

‘The Shareholders’ Mandale was expressed io take effect until the conclusion of the naxt AGM

Accordingly, the Directors propose that the Shareholders' Mandate be renewed at the Eleventh AGM,
o take effact untll tha Twelfth AGM of the Company.

4. Details of the Shareholders' Mandate '

Cetails of the Sharehalders’ Mandate, including the rationale for, and the benafils to, the Company, the
review procedures for determining transaction prices with Interested persons and other general
infarmation refating to Chapter 8 of the Listing Manual, are set'out in the annexure of this Appandix.

5. Audit Committes Statemaent

The Audit Committes has reviewed the terms of the Shareholders’ Mandate and confirms that:-

{a) the review proceduras for determining the transaction prices under the Shareholders’ Mandate
have not changed since the conciusion of the Tenth Annual General Meating convened on the 28
April 2014 and the Extraordinary General Meating convened on the 3 Oclober 2014 when the
Shareholders’ Mandate was approved; and

{b) the review procedures referred to in paragraph 7 of the Annexure are sufficlent (o ensure that the
transactions will ba ;.amed oul on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the
intaresis of the Company and its minority Shareholders.



If, during the periodic reviews by the Audit Committes, it is of the view that the established review ANNEXURE - THE SHAREHOLDERS' MANDATE
procedures - are no, longer appropriale or adequaie to ensure thal the Interesled Person
Transactions will be transacled on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the 1. Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual

Interests of the Company and minarily Sharehalders, the Company will saek a frash mandate from
Shareholders based on new review procaduras.

‘6. Directors' and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

The interests of the directors and substantial shareholders of the Company In the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2015 can be found on page 73 and 1498 of this Annual
Report.

7. Abstention from Voting

Zhao Lizhi, who is a Director of the Company, has interests in the shares of the Interested Parson
(as described in paragraph 5.1 of the Annexure to this Appendix), and also hold directorship and/or
executive position in it. He and his respective associates will abstain from voting on Resolution No.
10, being the Ordinary Resolution relating to the proposed renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate
in respect of thair shareholdings in the Company, if any, &t the Eleventh AGM,

B. Directors’ Recommendation

The Directors who are considerad independent for the purposes of the proposed renawal of the
Shareholders Mandate are Wu Xueying, Li Bin, Kuan Cheng Tuck, Lu King Seng and Yao Fengge
(the “Independant Directors”). The Indepandant Direclors: are of the opinion that the entry inta of
the Interested Person Transactions betwean the EAR Group (as described in paragraph 2.2 of the
Annaxure io this Appendix) and those Interasted Persons (as describad in paragraph 5.1 of the
Annaxure g this Appendix) in the ordinary coursa of its business will be entered into'to enhance
the efficiency of the EAR Group and are in the best interests of the Company.

For the reasons set outin paragraphs 2, 4 and 8 of the Annexure to this Appendix, the Indepandent
Direciors recommend that Sharefiolders vole in favour of Resolution No. 11, being the Ordinary
Reasolution refating to the proposed renewal of the Shareholders' Mandate at the Eleventh AGM.

8. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors collectively and individually accept respansibility for the accuracy of the information
given herein and confirm, having made all reasnnable enguiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, the facts stated and the opinions. axpr\essad harein are fair and accurate and that there
are no material facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

10. Action To Be Taken By Shareholders

If a Sharaholder is unable to-attend the AGM and wishas o appoint a proxy to attend and vole on
his bahalf, he should complete, sign and return the attached Proxy Form in accordance with the
Instructions printed thereon as socon as possible and, In any event, so as lo reach the registered
office of the Company at & Temasek Boulevard, #27-04 Suntec Tower Four, Singapore 038986
not later than 2,00 pom. on 28 April 2015, Completion and retumn of the Proxy Form by a
Shareholder will not prevent him from attending and woling at the AGM if he so wishes.

11. SGX-5T

The SGX-5T takes no responsibility for the accuracy-of any statements or ppinions made-in this
Appendix.

Chapter & of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
("SGX-ST") govéms transactions by a listed company, as well as transactions by its
subsidiaries and assoclated companies that are considered to be at risk, with the listed
énmparw's interested persans. When this Chapter applies to a transaction and the value of
that transaction alone or on aggregation with ofher transactions conducted with the interested
person during the financial year reaches, or exceeds, certain materiality thresholds, the listed
company is reguired to make an immediate announcement, or to make an immediate
announcement and seek its shareholders’ approval for that transaction.

Except for certain transactions which, by reason of the nature of such transactions; are not
considerad ta put the listed company &t risk to its intarested person and hence are excluded
from the ambit.of Chapter 8 of the Listing Manual, immediate announcement, or immediate
announcament and shareholders” approval would be required in respect of transactions with
interested persons if certain financial thresholds (which are based on the value of the
fransaction as compared with the listed company's latast audited consalidated net tangible
assels ("NTA")) are reached or exceeded. In particular, shareholders’ approval is required for
an interested parson transaction of a valua equal 1o, or which excesds:-

{a)5% of the listad company’s latest audited consalidated NTA; o

{1 5% of the listed company's latest audited consolidated NTA, when aggregated with other
transactions entered into with the same interested person (as such term is construed urldsr
Chapter 9 of the I'.Isung Manual) during the same finaricial year;

Based on the latest audited consofidated accounts of Green Build Technology Limited
{"Green Build") and its subsidiaries ("Green Build' Group”) for the financial year ended 31
Decembers 2014, the consofidated net tangible assets of Green Build Group was
approximately RMB 43,360,000, As such, in refation to Green Build, for the purposes of
Chapter 9 of the Listing-Manual, in the current financial year and until such time as the
consolidated audited accounts of Grean Build Group for the next financial year are published,
5% of the latest audited consolidated net tangible assets of the Green Build Group would be
approximately RMB 2,168,000,

Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual permits a listed company, howsver, to seek 8 mandate from
its shareholders for recurrent transactions of a revenue or frading neture or those necassary
for its day-to-day operations such as the purchase and sale of supplies and materials (but not
in respact of the purchase or sale of assels, undertakings or businesses) that may be carried
out with the listed company's interested parsons.



1.5 Under the SGX-5T Listing Manual -

{a) an "enfity af risk” maans:

i
\ : (il

{iit)

the listed company;

a subsidiary of the listed company that Is not lisled on the SGX-ST or an approved |
exchange; of

an assoclated company of the fisted company that is not listed on the SGX-8T oran
approved exchange, pravided that the isted company andlor its subsidianies (the
“listed group®), or the listed group and its inlerested parsonis), has control over, tha
associated company;

(b)an “interested person” means a director, chief executive officer or controlling sharehalder
of the listed company or an dssociale of any such diector, chief executive officer or
controlling shareholder,

(c)an “associste” means;- -
in relation to an interested person whoa is a director, chief e:s:utlwa afficer, substantial or
controlling shareholder includes:-

i
(i)

(iily

(v}

an immediate family member {that is, the spouse, child, adopted-child, steﬁ-chlrd.
sibling. and parent) of such director, chief exaculive officer or contrelling
shareholder;

the trustees. of any trust of which the director er his immediate family, the chief
executive officer or his Immediate family or contraliing sharehoider or his immediate
family is & beneficiary or, in the case of a discretionary trust, is a discretionary.object;
any company in which the directer and his immediale family, the chief executive |
officer and his immediate family or conirolling shareholder and his immediaie family
has an aggregate interest (directly or indirectly) of 30% or more; and’

where a substantial shareholder or a controlling shareholder which is a corporation,
its subsidiary or holding company or fellow subsidiery or a company in which it
and/or they hawve (directly or indirectiy) an interest of 30% or maore,

{d)an ‘approved exchange” means a stock exchange that has rules which safeguard the
interests of shareholders against interested person transactions according to similar
principles in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual; and

(e} an “intetested person transaction” means a transaction batwesn an entity at risk and an

Intarested parson.

159
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22

3.1

A

3

a4

Rationale for the Shareholders' Mandate

It is envisaged that in the ordinary course of their- businesses, transactions bebween-

companies in the EAR Group (as defined below) and -Green Build's interesied persons (as
defined in paragraph 5 below) are likely 10 ocour from time to time. Such transactions would
include the prwiébn of goods and services in the ordinary course of business of the EAR
Group to Green Build's interested persons.

rn' view of the time-sensitive nature of commercial transactions, the obtaining of the
Shareholders Mandate pursuant to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual will enable:-

{a) Green Build;

(b} subsidiaries of Green Build {other than a subsidiary that is listed on the SGX-ST or an
approvad exchanga); and

(c) associated companies of Green Build (other than an associated company that is listed on
the SGX-ST or an approved exchange) over which Grean Bulld Group, or Green Build
Group and jnterested personis} of Green Bulld, has or have control, (together, the “EAR
Group®), or any of them, in the ordinary coursa. of their businessaes, to enter inlo tha

) catagones of transactions (“Inferested Person Transactions™) set put in paragraph 6
balow with tha specified classes .of Grean Bulld's Interested persons (the “Interasted
Persons”) set out [n paragraph 5.1 batow, provided such Interested Person Transactions
are made on normal commerchal terms.

The Shareholders' Mandate 3

The Shareholders’ Mandate will cover the range of activities detailed in paragraph 6 below.

The Shareholders’ Mandate will not cover an Interested Person Transaction which has a value
cfibelow S$100,000 as the threshold and aggregation requirements containgd in Chapter @ of

the Listing Manual would not apply to suech an Interested Person Transaction.

Transactions with interested persons (including the Interested Persons) that do not fall within
the ambit of the Shareholders’ Mandate will be subject to the relevant provisions of Chapter 9
of the Listing Manual andfor cther applicable provisions of the Listing Manual.

The Shareholders’ Mandate will take effact from the date of the passing of Resolution Na. 10
relating 1o the renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate to be proposed at the Eleventh hGM o
b hald on Thursday, 30 Aprl 2015 untll the next AGM of the Comparny.
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4. Benefits of the Shareholders Mandats

The Sharsholders’ Mandate {and its subsequent renewsl thereafter on an annual basis) will enhance
the ability of companias in the EAR Group to pursue business opportunities which are time-sensitive
in nature, and will eliminate the need for Green Build to announce, or to announce and convena
separale general meetings on'each occasion 1o seek Shareholders”prior approval for the entry by the
relevant company in the EAR Group into such transactions. This. will substantially reduce the
expenses associated with the convening of general meetings on an ad hoc basis, Improve
administrative efficacy considarably, and allow manpower resources and time to be channelled
lowards attaining other corporate objectives,

5. Classes of Interested Persons

5.1 The Shareholders’ Mapdate will apply 1o Green Bulld Group's Interested parsan l.rla,nsacﬂorm with
Harbin Dali Aluminium Doors & Windows Products Co, Ltd. {the "Interested Persons”).

" 5.2 Transactions with Intefssted Persons, which do not fall within the ambit of the proposad
Shareholders Mandate, shall be subject to the relevant provisions of Chapter 8 of the Listing Manual.

6. Categories of Interested Person Transactions

The interested person transactions that will be covered by the Sharsholders’ Mandate refer to the
purchase of supplies and materials from Interested Persons (the "IPTs"),

7. Review Procedures for Interested Person Transactions

Green Build's principal activities include that of upgrading existing housing estates using green
architect and green technology. As part of such dpgrading projects, the EAR Group may enter into
iransactions with the Interested Perscns in the ordinary course of business to purchase supplies and
materials for use in the upgrading projects.

In general, the EAR Group has internal conlrol procedures 1o ensure that the IPTs are undertaken on
an arm's length basis and on narmal cammercial tarms consistant with lhe EAR Group's usual
practicas and policias, which {In refation o services or products to be provided 1o or procured from an
Interested Person) are no more favourable than those extended to unralated third parties. As a
general practice, the EAR Group will only enter into transactions with_an Interested Person if the

terms offered by the Interested Person are no less favourable than that offered by unrefated third <

partias: Tha Audit Committes will also review and approve the transactions whera applicable, as
further described below.

To ensure that all IPTs are carned out on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the

_interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders, Green Build Group has established the

following guidelines and procedures to be complied with prior to entry by Gresen Build Group inta any
IPT;

{a), the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and the finante manager of the relevant EAR
Group enfity entering into the IPT (collectively, the “Finance Team”) shall review
guotatians obtained from the Interested Person and at least twa other quotes from

unrelatad third parties. The EAR Group will only entar into transactions with such Interested Person
provided the guotation offered by the Interested Person, after taking into consideration' various
factors including, inter alia, credit standing, volume of transactions. delivery requirements, age of
products, praduct attachments, tenure of business relstionship and potential for future repeat
business, are no less favourable than that offered by the unrelated third parties, when compared fa
at laast twa latest similar iransactions between the EAR Groupiand unrelated third parties; and

{b) where it is not possible to compare the terms of a IPT against the terms of other
fransactions with unrelated third parties, the Finance Team will consider whether the
pricing of the IPTs is in accordance with the EAR Group’s usual business practices and
pricing palicies, and consistent with the usual unit cosis (i.e. the unit casis chargeable by
third parties at market rate for similar goods supplied by them) to be obtained for the
same or substantially similar types of transactions, o determine whether the relevant
fransaction is camied out at arm's length and onpormal commerial terms,

Approval by Directors and Audit Committee

In adition to the guidelines and review procedures set out above, the fallowing anproval procedures
will be implemented to supplement existing internal control prooedures and ensure that the |PTs ame
undertaken on ap arms' length basis and on normal commercial terms:

(a) the review and approval of the Chief Financial Officer and any one Director (with no
interest, direct or indirect, in the IPT) is required for any IPT where the value thereof is
below the lower of, RMB 5 Million or 3% of the Group's latest audited NTA; and

(b) the review and approval of the Audit Committes is required for any IPT where the value
thereof is equal to, or above the lower of, RMB § Million or 3% of the Group's latest
audited NTA.,

The approval thresholds set out above will be sdopted by the Company taking into sccount, inter alia,
the nature, valume, recument frequency and size of the IPTs, as wall as the EAR Group's day-to-day

operations, administration and businesses. The threshold limils are arrived al as a resull of a

balancing exercise after considering the operational efficlency for the day-to-day business operations
al the Group and the internal controls for Inlerested person transactions.

: In addition, the above review includes the examination of tha IF'I" and its supporting documents of

such other data deamed necassary by the Direclor or the Audit Committes. The Financa Team will
prepare the relevant information lo assist the Director or the Audit Committea in Its review. The
Director or the Audit Committea shall, whan it deems fit, have the right to requine the appointmeant of
indepei'bdam adwisers andior valuers to prdwd&.addiljona! informiation or review of controls and its
implementation pertaining to the IPTs under review,

Periodic Review Procedures
The EAR Group has also implemented the following procedures for the identification of Interestad
Persons and the record of all Interested Person Transactions:

\ \ \



163

fdy

(&)

The Finance Team will maintain a list of the Interested Persons and their Associates
{which is to be updated immediately if there are any changes) o enable identification of
the Interested Persons. The list of Interested Persons which is maintained shall be
reviewed quarterly by the Chief Financlal Officer and subject to such verifications or
declarations as required by the Audit Committse from time to time or for such period as
determined by them. This list of the Interested Persons shall be disseminated to all staft
of the Group that the Finance Team considers relevant for the purpose of enbenng inta
transactions that fall under the Proposad IPT Mandate.

The Financa Team will maintain a register of ransactions carried out with the Interested
Persons pursuant to the Proposed IPT Mandate (recording the basis, Including the
guotations obtained to support such basis, on which thay were entared into) (the “IPT
Raglstar‘i Any dlscmpaﬂdss or significant variances (as determined by the Audit
Cummittee) from the Groups usual business praclices and pricing policles will be
highlighted to the Audit Commitiee. The IPT Register will also record any transaction with
an Interested Person that is below 55100,000 in value, though such fransactions ane not
covered under the Proposed IPT Mandate,

Tl"le Audit Commitiee shall, at least on a quarterly basis, periodically review the IPT
Register to ensure that the IPTs are camied 'out on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the guidelines and review procedures under the Proposed IPT Mandate.
All relevant non-quantitative factors will also be taken into account, including but: not
limited to customer requirements, specification compliance, delivery schedules, track
record, experience and expertise, The Group's internal and external auditors shall assist
the Audit Gummmee in such review and carry out such tﬂﬁs as they deem necessary.

The Company’s annl.ml internal audit plan shall lnom'pofale a review of all [PTs, incuing
the established review procedures for monitoring of such IPTs, entered into during the
curent financial year pursuant to the Froposed IPT Mandate. The Group's internal auditor
shall, on a yearly basis, subject o adjustment in frequency, and depending on factors
such as, inter alia, substantial increment of aggregate transactional value, report to the
Audit Committee on all IPTs, and the basis of such Iransactions, enlered into with the
Intarested Persons during the preceding period.

As pari of the Group's annual audit, external-auditors will review the IPTs on a sampling

basis. The extenal auditors will report 1o the Audll Committea in the event of any 2

non-compliance based on the audit sample.

ITh_ﬂ Audii Commitiee and the Board shall review the internal audit reports to ascertain that
the guidefines and review procedures under the Proposed IPT Mandate have been
complied with and have overall responsibifity for the determination of such guidelines and
review procedures with the authority to sub-delegate to individuals or commitiees within
the Company as they deem approprate. In addition, the Audii Commitiee shall zlso
review from time to time the guidelines and review procedures to determing if they are
adequate and/or commercially practicable in ensuring that all IPTs are conducied on
normal commercia terms. | \

(@) if during its periodic reviews the Audit Commitiee is of the view that the proposed review
procedures and guidelines in place have become inappropriate or insufficient in view of
the changes to the nature of, or the manner in which, the business aclivities of the Group-
are conducted, it will, in consultation with the Board, take such actions as it deems
praper in respect of such procedures and guidelines andfor modify or iImplament such
procedures and guidelines as may be necessary,to ensure that the Interested Person
Transactions will be conducted on nomal commercial farms and, hence, will not be
prajudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority Sharéholders, and the
Company will seek a fresh mandate from the Shareholders based on the new review
procedures and guidelings for the Interested Persan Transactions.

Interested Audit Committee Member to Abstain

In tha event that a member of the Audit Committes (where applicable) ks interested {directly or
indiractly) in any IPT, he will abstain from raviewing that particular transaction o ensure that the |PT
will b carried out on nofmal commarncial tarms and not be prejudicial 1o the interasts of the Comparny
and its minonty Shareholders. Approval of that transaction will accordingly be undertaken by the
remaining membars of the Audit Cunrpllmq.

Further Compliance
The Board will ensure compfiance with all disclosure, approval and bﬂmrrequirenmls redating to the
|IPTs, including those préscribed by applicable laws and régulations, the Listing Manual and
accounting standards.

]

8. Benefits to the EAR Group

81 The renewal of the Sharehalders’ Mandate on an annual basis would eliminate the need
o convene separate general meetings from time to time to seek Shareholders' approval
as and when potential Interested Person Transactions the Interested Persons arise,
thereby reducing substantially the administrative ime and expenses in convening such
meetings, without compromising the corporete. objectives and adversely affecting the
business opportunities-available to the EAR Group.

8.2 The Shareholders’ Mandate is intended 1o facililate trafsactions in the normal course of

business of tha EAR Group, which are transacted from time o time with the Interestad

| Persons, provided that they|are carred oul al arm's length and on lhe normal
corfimercial terms and ara not prejudicial to Shareholders.

83 Grean Build will announce the apggregate value of Fansactions conducted with
Intarested Persons pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate for the hall-yearly financial
perods which Green Bulld is required to report on pursuant to the Listing Manual and
within the tme required for the announcement of stich repodt.

Disclosure v:w also be made in the annual report :J‘f Grean Build of the aggregate valué
of Interested Person Transactions conducted pursuant to the Shargholders' Mandate
during the financial year in which a shareholders’ mandate is in force,
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Proxy Form

GREEN BUILD TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

AIncorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

(Company Registration No. 200401338W)

e (Mame)
of A A - {Address)
being & member/mambers of Green Build Technology Limited (the "Company") heraby appoint
"Nama Address NRICI Proportion of mylour
Passport No. Sharehalding
No. of %
shares
andior (delete as appropriate)
Hame Address NRIC! Propartion af mylour
Passport No. Sharehaldi
= . = We. of % =
shares
] | [

faillng which, tha Chairman of tha Meating, as my/our proxy/proxles to attend and vole for malus on
myfour behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held at RELC International Hotel,
30 Orange Grove Read, Singapore 258352 on Thursday, 30 April 2015 at 2.00 p.m,, and at any
adjournment thereof. |\We direct miyiour proxy/proxies o voté for or against the Resclutions to be
proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder, If no specific direction as o voting is given, the
proxyiproxies will vole or abstain from voling at histheir discretion, a5 he/they will on any other mattes

arising at the Meating.

\

A\

No

Resolutions Relating To:

For Against

Qrdinary Business

Adoption of Reports and Audited Accounts for the fingncial year
ended 31 December 2014

Approval of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31
December 2014

!

Approval of Directors’ fees for the financial year ending 31
December 2015

Re-appointment of Mr Li Bir

Re-appointment of Mr Zhao Lizhi

Re-appointment of MrKuan Cheng Tuck

Re-appointment of Mr Lu King Sang

Re-appointment of Dr Yao Fengge

CEREIEE

Re-appointment of Messrs Emst & Young LLP as Auditors
Special Business

i

Authority to allot and issue new shares

Renewal of Shareholders' Mandate for Interestad Parson
Transactions ) 3

(Piease indicate with a cross [X] in the space provided whgﬂ‘@e« you wish your vote to be cast for or
against the Resolutions as set oul in the Notica of the Meeting. )

Datad this

day of 2015.

Signature of Memben(s} or Common Seal

Important; Please-raad notes overleaf

!

Total number of Shares held

8



Motes:

t. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have Shares entered-against your

name in the Depository Register (as defined in Seciion 1304 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50}, you
should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares registerad in your name in the Register
of Members, you should insert that number of Shares. If'yqu have Shares registered In your |
name in the Depository Register and Shares registared in your name in the Register of Members,
you shauld insert the aggregate number of Shares entered against yvour name inthe Depository
Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the
instrumient appainting a proxy or proxias shall be deamed o relate to all the Shares held by you.

2 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Mseﬁng Is entitled to appélnbnne or two proxies to

attend and vote In his stead.

‘3. Where a mamber appoints more than ane proxy, the appainiments shall be invalid unless he

spacifies the proporion of hds shareholding teocprsssscl as a percentage of tha whole) lo. be
mpmsentod by each proxy,

4. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. !

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposiled at the Company's registered

office at & Temasek Boulevard #27-04, Suntec Tower 4, Smgapors (038936 at least 48 hours
before the time of the Annual General Meeting.

6.  The'instrument appointing @ proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor o of his

attormey duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument,appointing a proxy or proxies is
execuled by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common sedl or under the hand
of its atforney or a duly authorised officer,

7.  Whera an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attomey, the

letter of power of attomey or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with
the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy; failing which the instrument may be treated
as invalid.

8. The Company shall be entitled to refect a Praxy Form which is incomplete, improperly complated,

llagibie or where the true intentions of the appaintor are nol ascerlainable from the instruclions
of the appointor spacified on the Proxy Form. In addition, in the case of shares antered in tha”
Depository Register, the Company may reject a Proxy Form If the member, being the appointor,
is not shawn to have Shares enterad against his name in the Depesitory Register asat 4B hours
before the time appointed for holding the Meating, as ceriified by The Ceniral Dspository (Pie)
Limited to the Company.



